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GROUP STRUCTURE
RHEZRE

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
MtLKEEERBRAT

Hong Kong Listed Company
with focus on

Tourism-Related Businesses, Property Investments and Securities Trading

EERREMRBERE - WERERBSEEZEB LT AT

Tourism-Related Property Securities
Businesses Investments Trading
Hik 352 M BA 75 MERE EHEE

Cruise Ship
Charter Services

50 7 5 PR AS R R

Hotel Operations
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Revenue

Profit/(Loss) attributable to

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SREH B ER A 7

(HK$ million) WA (BEET)

BB ABEERN,

equity holders (HK$ million) (B#8)(B&ER)
Equity attributable to RERE ARG
equity holders (HK$ million) ER(BBET)
Eamings/(Loss) per share gREMN/(BR)
(HK cents) (4L

2009

—BENF

219.1

(69.7)

982.6

(1.21)

* As adjusted for the effect of share subdivision from which,
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 12 July 2007, each of the
then existing issued and unissued share of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company has been subdivided into
four shares of HK$0.0025 each with effect from 13 July 2007.

* As adjusted for the effect of bonus issue on the basis of one
new share for every twenty shares held on 2 September 2008,
which was passed as an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2008.

HK$ million
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ERMBRE

2008 2007 2006 2005
“2E\F —2TrF -—TTAE -TTREG
3035 2473 252.5 264.3
176.2 124.8 202.3 132.6
1,072.8 741.2 609.7 3423
3.15% 2.55% 5.02% 377
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

Dear our Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (“New Century” or the
“Company”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

2008 turned out to be a difficult and challenging year. The
global economy was in recession, posing challenges and
uncertainties. The harsh effects of this are already being felt
by many companies and industries. No major developed
or developing country has been spared. Equity markets in
Asia and around the world experienced one of the most
volatile periods on record during the year. Hong Kong,
Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia, where New Century and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have most of its investments
and derive most of its revenues, have also seen their
economies contracting sharply. The Group, similar to many
companies, has been adversely affected and recorded a loss
during the year after five consecutive years of profit results.
Nonetheless, the core businesses of the Group remained
stable at the operating level even as it suffered (i) fair value
losses on cruise ships; (ii) impairment of hotel premises;
(iii) fair value losses on investment properties; (iv) net
losses on securities trading; and (v) foreign exchange losses.

TOURISM-RELATED BUSINESSES

In the year under review, the cruise ship charter services for
two cruise ships namely “Leisure World” and “"Amusement
World” (the “Cruise Ships") continued to be the major
source of the Group's revenue and profit. Business activity
was characterized by the Group’s move to enter into new
charter agreements for the Cruise Ships. On 1 October
2008, a new charterer "Asean Amusement Limited”
chartered "Amusement World" with a fixed daily charge
of SG$12,000 and a floating charge, equivalent to 45%
of net win of the slot machines onboard “Amusement
World”. Meanwhile, on 1 December 2008, a new charterer
“New Vicking Amusement Management Limited” chartered
“Leisure World” with a fixed daily charge of SG$23,000 and
a floating charge, equivalent to 45% of net win of the slot
machines onboard “Leisure World".

BAIRER -

AAMRARREFHLEBRBTEAR QT
([FHERLIKIARFDHE—_ZZAF
Z—A=+t—"HLEMBRFEZFR-

—ET) N\FERBEMAKEMEN—F -
EIREERER WRIKBETBEBARE
R ZERRARAMBATECRERZIHE
TR FE  TENEDERIBERTE
ZHPTEFER - TMEEHRERETHR
RNEZRNKET B 485 VA R BOK B &) By
He L REMBARTAER]
MR RETERE K- BFX
AELEE  EXBOWRATFEZSE
Ml - (B R% F 0 R B0 AR TR = B MR e
MWMRZ AR — % AEBEZIHTHNZ
Z NEERFESENZEZHERNA
FEREGER BEASEERIO)®
WATFEEEBERE: (VEEMERE:
(INVREMEAFEEER: (VEFE
BEFEE: RWINEEE - A
RO EBIRARITIRE -

R ER

EEFEAN - RMEE A [Leisure World ]
¥ [Amusement World | Z ##s ([ E55 |)
ZHERBEEN AAEB 2 EZEWAR
AR c LBRERES - REEDLK
RIS FBAWE  c RZEZENEFE+
A—H ' #MAA [Asean Amusement
Limited| A& [Amusement World] * &
HEHWER 12,000 KT MFSHKE
JE AR E [Amusement World|
AT FIW s 2 45% © B RE - %
—EENF+_A—B FHEAA [New
Vicking Amusement Management Limited ]
FAE [Leisure World] - FEEERKE A
23,000 7T M¥BHREFE - BAH
= [Leisure World] EAF# 2 Famr
4500 °
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TOURISM-RELATED BUSINESSES (continued)

For the hotel operations, a steady increase in turnover
was reported. Although the hotel operations are not the
main contributor to the Group's revenue, it is the Group's
strategy to develop the hotel operations together with
the cruise ship charter services into a unique platform for
synergy effect, to provide ground resort services to the

passengers of “Leisure World".

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

Due to further slowdown in the world economy and the
worsening crisis in the financial markets, asset prices,
particularly of office property, declined sharply during
the year. Despite the substantial fall in property prices,
weakened consumer spending and high unemployment
rate in Asia, the Group has achieved higher average
annual yields and high occupancy rates from properties in
Hong Kong and Singapore, so the recurrent rental income
remained stable despite the fall in valuation caused by the

gloomy property markets.

SECURITIES TRADING

In view of the volatility and the lower price-earning ratio of
shares in Hong Kong, the Group has identified securities
trading as one of its core businesses since October 2008.
The investment portfolio of the Group consists mainly
of blue chip comparables with strong profits generating
background. The Group has always adopted a prudent
strategy in managing its investment portfolio. It has never
been involved in any equity or derivative investments which
might have incurred substantial losses during the downturn

in the financial markets.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERES

REMREER (E)

WEER 2 EXREIBLIE N - BEBIE
EBWIEREMEZRARIR - KRl
AEBMZRERKB/EEBEA HimA
ERIEITER A Leisure World] 2 E &
RHkE LEBRRE &M TFE  LER

193 B Rk 2 o

MERE

EREEE-—LWRE MEERTHE
Rl BHEE(LEERIEDFR)
ZEBRAFEARNZBE T &E M
MEEBRARNEK  HBHEEBE SN
9 KREXFD AWM AREZEFB
NI MBEDEOFHBFREREH L
o HEREE Bt #AMEDS
TEREFGHEE N AW KFHEHE
T WARIMEFIRE -

HEEHE

BERTERENS  mEXRE K
SEE-_ZTT)\FTABEFEEERS
BETER—BERLER - AEBZERE
HETEBERELERENBENESZER
Ale AEBEEEAEAREEAAR —EHRK
BRERKE KR REMAEES R
MG HIR R M BB ER BN RS
M TETAKRSE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

P7



P8

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of
HKO0.35 cent per share, which is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

PROSPECTS

Despite the effects of the global financial crisis sparked by
the collapse of the US sub-prime mortgage market and the
bankruptcy of a number of gigantic financial institutions,
New Century is cautiously optimistic towards the coming

year. The Group is ready to face the challenges ahead.

In light of the current economic environment, the Board will
continue to adopt a cautious approach to growth and focus
on maintaining a strong and healthy balance sheet. The
Board will continue to monitor capital expenditure plans
and conserve the Group's cash. Undoubtedly, there will be
challenges in the coming year as consumption weakens,
but New Century is well-positioned compared with the
competition and stands to benefit from an experienced and
capable senior management team. The Group is confident
that Asia will be the first region to recover from the
economic downturn and our business growth will revive

faster than our peers in the region.

APPRECIATION

| extend my appreciation to the Group’s management, staff
and shareholders for their invaluable support, and to meet

the challenges for future growth.

Wilson Ng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 July 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group's principal
activities included cruise ship charter services, hotel
operations, property investments and the newly-added

securities trading.

The Group reported total revenue of HK$219.1 million
(2008: HK$303.5 million), representing a drop of 27.8%.
The decrease was due to the drop in cruise ship charter
service income and the inclusion of securities trading as
one of its principal activities, which recorded the significant
realized and unrealized net losses under the difficult year
in 2008. The Group recorded consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$69.7 million
(2008: profit of HK$176.2 million). Basic loss per share
was HK1.21 cents (2008: earnings of HK3.15 cents).
The net assets value marked a decrease to HK$984.8
million compared with HK$1,094.9 million for the last

corresponding year.

The decline in profit was mainly due to the following
factors: (i) fair value losses on cruise ships of HK$57.0
million (2008: Nil); (ii) impairment of hotel premises of
HK$5.8 million (2008: HK$3.9 million); (iii) fair value
losses on investment properties of HK$102.0 million
(2008: gains of HK$76.4 million); (iv) net losses on
securities trading of HK$60.8 million (2008: net gains of
HK$6.3 million); and (v) devaluation of Singapore dollar
to Hong Kong dollar, which resulted in exchange losses of
HK$27.6 million (2008: gains of HK$10.3 million) for the
Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HKO.35 cent per share payable to equity holders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 4 September 2009. Subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 4 September 2009, the final
dividend will be paid on 18 September 2009.

T EsT R 5T

ES
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176,200,000 7T) - BRREREBHIER1.21
B (ZZTZENEFE  BF3A58M) - &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BBt S T

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 31 August 2009 to Friday, 4 September
2009, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of Company’s shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all share certificates with
duly completed transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 28 August 2009.

OPERATIONS
Cruise Ship Charter Services

The cruise ship charter services of “Leisure World” and
“Amusement World” (the “Cruise Ships”) continues to
produce solid performance in the year under review.
It remains as the principal contributor to the Group's
revenue. Revenue from the cruise ship charter services
segment amounted to HK$221.8 million, representing a
slight decrease of 8.6% as compared to HK$242.7 million
last year. The decrease in revenue was due to the global
financial crisis, which resulted in worsening economic
conditions and the drop in charter service income for
new charter agreements of the Cruise Ships executed in
the fourth quarter of 2008. Its segment profit dropped
to HK$101.4 million as compared to HK$206.6 million
last year. The fall of segment profit was mainly due to (i)
fair value losses on the Cruise Ships of HK$57.0 million
(2008: Nil); (ii) devaluation of Singapore dollar to Hong
Kong dollar, which resulted in significant exchange losses
of HK$17.0 million (2008: gains of HK$6.0 million) for
the year; and (iii) advertising expenses of HK$16.3 million

(2008: HK$3.8 million) to attract visitors for cruise travel.

EENRERRECFE

AARBA-ZTENAFNA=Z+—R (2
BO)E-TTAFAANB (2HA) (2
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HEBEAR-ZZNFNA=FTN\R (2
M) THAEE =+ SR ERARANE
BZRODBFELOIBEEBERAR
AR AR E BT 2E KB R85
SEEHL26IE  PERE BT -

REXEK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS (continued)
Hotel Operations

For the year under review, the hotel operations at Batam
View Beach Resort on Batam Island in Indonesia remained
stable and provided synergy to the Group's cruise ship
charter services. The business recorded revenue of
HK$28.1 million (2008: HK$26.6 million). Its segment
result has been greatly improved to a loss of HK$6.0
million, as compared to a loss of HK$11.4 million last year.
Excluding the effect of exchange loss of HK$5.4 million
(2008: HK$6.1 million) and impairment in value of HK$5.8
million (2008: HK$3.9 million), the operating profit for the
year was HK$5.2 million (2008: a loss of HK$ 1.4 million).

Property Investments

The Group's property investments recorded a steady 7.6%
increase in revenue to HK$29.9 million, as compared to
HK$27.8 million last year. However, its segment result
suffered a loss of HK$93.9 million, as compared to a profit
of HK$80.8 million last year. The property market declined
during the year as a result of the global financial downturn.
The decline in market value gave rise to significant adverse
impact on the property investments segment since the
second half of 2008. Consequently, significant fair value
losses were noted for both properties in Singapore
and Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2009, AIG Building in
Singapore (“AIG Building”) was valued at SG$43.5 million
(31 March 2008: SG$48.0 million). Fair value losses of
AIG Building and properties in Hong Kong were HK$24.3
million (2008: gains of HK$53.0 million) and HK$77.7
million (2008: gains of HK$23.4 million) respectively.
Excluding the above fair value losses, recurring profit of
property investments would have been HK$8.1 million
(2008: HK$4.4 million).

T EsT R 5T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BBt S T

OPERATIONS (continued)
Property Investments (continued)

Although the financial turmoil had a negative impact on
property values, rental income of the Group benefited
from positive rental trends that began in 2007. The average
annual rental yield derived from investment properties in
Hong Kong and Singapore rose to 4.8% (2008: 3.7%).
The Group managed to achieve an occupancy rate of about
100% for all of its rental properties during the year and

maintain stable rental income.

In view of the cut in Hong Kong savings rate to nearly zero
in late May 2009, some cash-rich investors re-entered
the property market in a bid to offset the depreciation of
money amid inflationary economy. That put the overall

property market in Hong Kong on the upward track again.

Securities Trading

In view of the volatility and lower price-earning ratio of
shares in Hong Kong, the Group has identified securities
trading as one of its principal activities since October 2008.
In 2008, the securities market in Hong Kong experienced
severe volatility because of the global financial tsunami. The
continuous falling trend of the securities market resulted
in significant net losses of HK$60.8 million (2008: net
gains of HK$6.3 million) in this segment, which included
realized loss of HK$19.7 million and unrealized loss of
HK$44.0 million.

The Hang Seng index stood at 13,576 as at 31 March
2009. The securities market regained its growth
momentum since April 2009. It rose by 35.4% to 18,378
on 30 June 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$210.3 million (2008: HK$210.3 million)
given to banks to secure general credit facilities for
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Credit facilities in an
aggregate amount of HK$79.6 million (2008: HK$88.0
million) had been utilized by the subsidiaries in respect of

such guarantees as at the balance sheet date.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2009, some of the Group's prepaid land

premiums, leasehold office premises and investment
properties with an aggregate value of HK$592.6 million;
a cruise ship with a value of HK$132.6 million; equity
investments with a carrying value of HK$46.5 million; and
a fixed deposit of HK$17.6 million were pledged to banks,
a fellow subsidiary and securities dealers for loan facilities
worth HK$348.4 million granted to the Group. As at 31
March 2009, HK$153.0 million of the loan facilities had
been utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had net current assets of
HK$471.7 million and equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$982.6 million.

The Group's total indebtedness (representing the aggregate
amounts of interest-bearing loans from banks and a
fellow subsidiary) was HK$153.0 million. All loans were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars
or Singapore dollars and charged at floating interest
rates. It was secured by: i) mortgages over some of the
Group’s properties that have an aggregate net book
value of HK$592.6 million; ii) a cruise ship with a value
of HK$132.6 million; and iii) a fixed deposit of HK$17.6

million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BBt S T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

Regarding the total indebtedness, HK$29.9 million will
be repayable within one year, HK$60.6 million will be
repayable from the second to fifth years and the remaining
balance of HK$62.5 million will be repayable after five
years. The Group's gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided
by equity attributable to equity holders of the Company)
as at the balance sheet date was reduced to 0.16 as
compared to 0.18 as at 31 March 2008.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group could not meet the
relevant debt covenants of a bank loan of HK$17.6 million
in relation to the requirements on fair value of a cruise ship
and the net worth of the subsidiary which entered into the
loan agreement. The bank loan was accordingly classified
as a current liability on the balance sheet. Subsequent to
the balance sheet date, such debt covenants had been
relinquished upon full settlement of the related loan. There

was no breach of covenants as at the date of this report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there was a bonus issue
of ordinary shares to shareholders on the basis of one
bonus share for every twenty shares held. Consequently,
the issued share capital of the Company increased from
HK$13.7 million (represented by 5,490,751,148 ordinary
shares) to HK$14.4 million (represented by 5,765,288,705
ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2009.

EXPOSURE ON EQUITY PRICE RISK, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RISK AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as trading equity
investments. The Group’s listed investments are listed on
the stock exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted

market prices at the balance sheet date.

RBESRMBER (E)

ERER 5 E - 29,900,000 7T B R —
FREE 60,600,000 TTHRE =

% HF NEE - #%62,500,000% 7T H
RAFHRER REER AEEZA
B R (REBBRUARRARIERE AR
RER)BLE0I6 MA_TETNF=
A=+—Bz&a@Ekxa/70.18 -

N—_EENF=ZA=Z+—H XEHK
BERT A R 1T B FX 17,600,000/ JT & B4 &
BAFLEBELEILERBZE ZHEB QR

MEEFENRENEBERZR - K
- AEERBBERA RITERSHE
ARRBRBE -REERER E28ER
EERE FREBERAIZECKERE-
RARE B HAY 8 R R -

BB

REBEFA  NAFRARKRRETSTBER
B BESEBRHAE - TRRMHATE
BT —RAKR - Al AAF 2B BT
i& 7K B3 13,700,000/ 7t (E55,490,751,148
REBIRMANKR) RE_ZFTZFTNEF
=— A=+ —H 214,400,000/ 7t (M
5,765,288,7058% & @A ATAE AL ) ©

IREEEERE - JNE bR A R
[ B

AN E S E @RI HEERE
MREREMEENDRZEEBRRR -
EEz EMRETEAEREMIM LT
MEBEBEMRAEFNEEEANTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE ON EQUITY PRICE RISK, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RISK AND INTEREST RATE RISK
(continued)

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are mainly held
predominately in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars. The Group's borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars
or Singapore dollars at floating interest rates. The Group's
exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's long term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group's has no significant interest rate risk. As the impact
from foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging

against foreign currency exposure is necessary.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had 269 staff. 237 of

them were based in Indonesia, 6 in Singapore and 26
in Hong Kong. The remuneration policies of the Group
are to ensure fairness and competitiveness in order to
motivate and retain employees and to attract potential
ones. Besides, discretionary bonuses and share options are
granted to eligible staff based on both individual and the
Group's performance. As at 31 March 2009, the Group had
139.2 million outstanding share options granted to eligible

executives and employees of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company to
safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to enhance

the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code") as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009, except for certain
deviations as specified with considered reasons for such

deviations as explained below.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget, annual and interim results, the management
structure of the Company as well as other significant
policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
responsibility of the day-to-day operations of the Group to

the management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board currently comprises ten directors (the
“Directors”), seven of them are Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman), Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy
Chairman), Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer), Ms.
Lilian Ng, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and Mr. Yu Wai Man; and
three of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and
Mr. Ho Yau Ming. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors (including
the relationships among members of the Board) are set out
under the section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages
28 to 32 of this annual report.

During the year, four full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of

Executive Directors attendance
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman) 2/4
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

(Chief Operating Officer) 2/4
Ms. Lilian Ng 2/4
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 2/4
Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (resigned on

1 February 2009) 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 4/4
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 3/4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEERE

B (#)
EFeRiFhmtRES(ESD AKX
EFLtREA/AMTES  IEERLE(E
) @RBELXE(BEXE)  JERELEE
(ITHER) =FEWMAL(ZERE)
BAEL LT RBEXLRRENE
A AR=Z2RBIFRTESE =
BZEEAE - BREEEERMRBPLE -
ARFEEEBIFATESTTARE
ETRANEINZGEL 2 FEBLER
L ARRZ2BETRAMET 2 BL
el BEABLIIFRATEETRBILA
T -BEFZEEFB(BREFEXER
ZRR) BN AN FERF28EFEI2AEZ
[EEME| -8R -

FAR - ARARBRITTHORERESFKE
BE - BEFZHLFEREFINT

HITES HE IR
BERKE(FE) 2/4
mEBLt (BEE) 4/4
EEGSE (TTHAAE) 4/4
BEHEBMZ L

(EEABE) 2/4
HRE L+ 2/4
PR 4% S 22 = 2/4
REXEE 4/4
BHEEE (RZZEZNF

—A—HET) 3/4
BYFHITES
EEHFILE 4/4
A B i 5 A 4/4
A] R BR 5t &= 3/4

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

P17



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit
and remuneration committees or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting.

Owing to another business engagement, Mr. Wilson
Ng, the chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2
September 2008. In his absence, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, the
chief executive officer of the Company (who is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee) attended and
took the chair of the said annual general meeting and
ensured that proceedings of the meeting were conducted
in order, whereas the chairman of the audit committee
was also present at the meeting. The Company considers
that the members of the Board, the audit committee
and the remuneration committee who attended the said
annual general meeting were already of sufficient calibre
and numbers to address shareholders’ questions at the

meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are distinct and separate. The former is mainly
responsible for the leadership of the Board while the latter

is responsible for the overall performance of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wilson Ng
and the Deputy Chairman, Ms. Sio lon Kuan. They are
responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic
development and setting appropriate polices to manage
risks in pursuit of the Company strategic objectives. The
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, working with
other Executive Directors, is responsible for managing
the business of the Company. Mr. Wilson Ng is the elder
brother of Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Their respective responsibilities

are clearly established and set out in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from
office by rotation at least once every three years as referred
to the bye-Law 87 of the Company where provides that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of
the Company for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less

than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are not less exacting than those in the
Code.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 July
2005 with specific terms of reference. It comprises five
members, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ng Wee Keat (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Yu Wai Man, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing policy on such remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, two meetings were held and the

attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 2/2
Mr. Yu Wai Man 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 2/2
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 1/2

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability
of an individual to act as a Director, and approving and
terminating the appointment of a Director. The Company
currently does not have a nomination committee. The
Chairman is responsible for identifying suitable candidates
for member of the Board when there is a vacancy or an
additional director is considered necessary. The Chairman
proposes the appointment of such candidates to the Board
for consideration. The Board will review the qualifications of
the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to the
Group on the basis of his or her qualifications, experiences

and background.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditors, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit

services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Audit services 1,300,000
Non-audit services 350,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

EREEE (#)
EREEEZEBWEARBENT

to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of those
auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’

independence and objectivity;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement
of external auditors to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’'s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and to review significant

financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting

policies and practices; and

to review the external auditors’ management
letters and to ensure the Board will provide a
timely response to the issues raised in the external
auditors’ management letter.

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held

and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of

Members attendance
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 2/2

Mr. Ho Yau Ming 1/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year:

1. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008 and to recommend them to the Board for

approval; and

2. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2008 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other

regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 44

to 46 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
provision of cruise ship charter services, hotel operations,
property investments and securities trading. During the
year, the Group decided to include securities trading as one

of its principal activities.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 47 to
163.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKO.35 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the register of members on 4 September
2009. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits

within the equity section of the balance sheet.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 164. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group's investment properties are set out on pages 165 to
167.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 2 September
2008, bonus issue to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register on the record date, 2 September
2008, on the basis of one new share for every twenty
shares held on the record date, ranking pari passu in all

respects with the existing share capital of the Company.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year, together with the reasons
therefor, are set out in notes 25 and 26, respectively to the

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had reserves available
for distribution of approximately HK$589,880,000 of which
HK$20,179,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$351,944,000 as at 31 March 2009, may

be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount
of approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2009
is distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances,

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$3,012,000.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
Mr. Yu Wai Man
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles
(resigned on 1 February 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company's bye-laws, Ms. Lilian Ng, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,

Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming, and as at the date of this

report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(@) Executive Directors

Mr. Wilson Ng Chairman

Aged 37. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002 and was appointed as the
chairman of the Company in October 2002. Mr. Ng
is also a director of various members of the Group.
Mr. Ng graduated from Santa Clara University with a
Bachelor's degree in Chemistry and Psychology. Mr. Ng
has extensive investment experience in Southeast Asia.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was primarily
involved in corporate development and business
investment activities. Mr. Ng is also a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Ng is the elder brother of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda.

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 42. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004.
Ms. Sio is also a director of various members of
the Group. Ms. Sio has over 14 years of extensive
management experience in various fields including
retailing, property investments, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is also a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
In addition, Ms. Sio is also a director of New Century

Investment Pacific Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 32. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company in April 2004.
Mr. Ng is also a director of various members of the
Group. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Ng worked in a ship management
company where he was responsible for re-engineering
the Company's structure as well as ensuring the daily
operations of that Company in a smooth and efficient
way. Mr. Ng is also a director of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited, the immediate holding company of
New Century Investment Pacific Limited, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition,
Mr. Ng is also a director of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of Mr.
Wilson Ng and Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother of
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 31. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the
chief operating officer of the Company in October
2004. Ms. Ng is also a director of various members
of the Group. Ms. Ng brings to the Group experiences
in the fields of real estate management, human
resource management and retail operations. Ms. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of
Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng

Aged 35. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng is also a director of
various members of the Group. Ms. Ng graduated from
San Francisco State University with a Bachelor's degree
in Business Administration. Ms. Ng has extensive hotel
management experience. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Ng was a finance and operation director of a
conglomerate with businesses in tour industry and
cruise liner management as well as hotel and property
management in Southeast Asia. Ms. Ng is also a
director of New Century Investment Pacific Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Mr. Wilson Ng and the
elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 44. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an
executive director in May 2000. Ms. Chen is also a
director of various members of the Group. Ms. Chen
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Chen has over 21 years of experience in the

accounting field, including 4 years in auditing.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee

Aged 44. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu is also a director of
various members of the Group. From January 2003 to
February 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Yu is a fellow member
of both of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 24 years of experience
in the accounting field, including 3 years in external
audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr. Yu has over 16
years of financial management experience in companies

listed both in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai Chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 70. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in May 1999. Mr.
Wong is a Practising Certified Public Accountant and
a fellow member of both of the CPA Australia and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong has more than 44 years of financial
management experience. Mr. Wong is the principal of
W. Wong & Co., C.PA..
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(©

(continued)
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 62. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied Science degree
in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over
28 years of experience in the real estate business and

business agent.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 58. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Ho holds a Master degree in Finance from University
of Leicester in England, United Kingdom. Mr. Ho had
worked in the banking industry for over 27 years in
official and senior executive positions including The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and Dao Heng Bank Limited.

Former director

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles, J.pr.

Aged 59. Mr. Lo joined the Company as an executive
director in March 1999. Mr. Lo was also a director of
various members of the Group. Mr. Lo is a Certified
Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia and is an
associate member of the Financial Services Institute of
Australasia. Mr. Lo has over 33 years of professional and
business experience in financial and investment services
in Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries. Mr. Lo
resigned as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as

follows:
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EZ=RBR O REEROZEXR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) KE(8)
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARRNRIEBIE 2008 -

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEEBERYE  SORERNE

Directly Through Percentage of the

held controlled Beneficiary Company's issued

Directors interests corporation of a trust Total share capital

BRARCET

= EEREER EBZRHAR EREZEHA @t BRAZBEDH

Mr. Wilson Ng 17,850,000 252,000,000 3,455,753,691 3,725,603,691 64.62
EREEAE (note 2) (note 3)
(Hizt2) (Hat3)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 42,000,000 252,000,000 3,455,753,691 3,749,753,691 65.04
mERZL (note 2) (note 3)
(Hz2) (H#3)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat 30,030,000 252,000,000 3,455,753,691 3,737,783,691 64.83
ERAELE (note 2) (note 3)
(Hat2) (H1:23)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 26,250,000 252,000,000 3,455,753,691 3,734,003,691 64.77
S (note 2) (note 3)
(Hizt2) (Hat3)

Ms. Lilian Ng 26,250,000 252,000,000 3,455,753,691 3,734,003,691 64.77
BRELT (note 2) (note 3)
(Hiz2) (H:23)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 18,900,000 - - 18,900,000 0.33

BRI B+
Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 - - 3,360,000 0.06
RENESE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EERNROREERO 2EER
#KE ()
RARBEREZ TR

Number of share options directly

Directors beneficially owned
BE ERERREEZERERE
Mr. Wilson Ng mEEEE 21,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan RER T 21,000,000
Mr. Ng Wee Keat mEHREE 18,900,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EEBLT 18,900,000
Ms. Lilian Ng mAEL L 12,600,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PRi& B+ 12,600,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENEE 12,600,000

117,600,000
Notes: K& -

1.  As at 31 March 2009, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,765,288,705.

2. 252,000,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee and a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are members and members of its

council of management.

3.  3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group
(BVI) Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,

Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.

R-_ZTZAE=A=+—8 X272
BB 1T 880 55,765,288,705% °

252,000,000 I B Frtt 4 (BK) &&=
AESBRARFTAR  ZRARB—RER
ERARRIEA—RAKESHE &
ERREE BEMLLT BEMLE F
BHEAZTREMNELLTRZARIZKE
LEBZEEKE -

3,455,753,691 % f% f7 BENew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# 4 » I
Huang Group (BVI) Limitedi® i@ & 4 {5 #E
REER ZEDREAZEEZHA
PREEERLE THBEL L ZEHG
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2009, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders Notes
L Htat
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4
=IRB L

Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick 3,5
DER P

EERROREEROAZERZR
xe (|

R EXFIFEBEEN EEHMERERRF
ok, L {a] AR Bt & B 2 B 15 2k A8 B AR (0

WEREBEFES RPEEAEIS2EBRAER

ZHEEmAE  HIRIBIRESRIZHAT
MABEMEARABREGZFIZEmKE o

el

>

I]

FERREHEMALTRED KA
AR ZEERKXR

MARAREMEBEERM  RZTZENF
—A=1T—"H BLELXMBEBEARARAE
FZEmIN AR RRE EITRAS%K
LA EZ T o iR IR & H R HAE 1501
E 336G TR ANRDRBRT 2 ELM

]

TR 2R
Number of  Percentage of the
ordinary  Company’s issued

shares held share capital

ERRFEET
FREEEREAE L N=
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,757,753,691 65.18
3,455,753,691 59.94
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2009, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,765,288,705.

2. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,455,753,691 shares.

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Kan Ka Chong,
Frederick, as the trustee of a discretionary trust, the settlor of

which is Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

4.  3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 252,000,000 shares were held by New
Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited, while 50,000,000
shares were held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the members of New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng was deemed to be interested in a total of
3,757,753,691 shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation
Limited is a company limited by guarantee and a charitable

institution of public character.

5.  Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick held 3,455,753,691 shares as
the trustee of the discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson Ng,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FERRRHEMATRRKRG RAE
ARG kSRR E (&)

Hiat

. RZZEZEAF=ZRAR=+—H ARFZ
B TR 10 48 #0/=5,765,288,705/% °

2. Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZNew Century
Investment Pacific Limited” &% 45 & A
Al e Huang Worldwide Holding Limited7%
New Century Investment Pacific Limited
ZBHB®ER AR - EHitt - Huang Group
(BVI) Limited 2Huang Worldwide Holding
Limited# 18 & ¥ & & #£3,455,753,691 /%
&ty Z #E s e

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limitedfh i 5% 58 5c 4
N—EA2REERZERIAREREE &%
PREAZETAREBBE -

4. 3,455,753,6910% I& {9 BANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# #& -
252,000,000 fi% fh ¥t 42 (B R) B &
H & BR A FFA K50,000,0008 i 45
RMEMBTERA SEBEERNE
H(ER)BSESARQARZESR L
RE - Ak EEBEERRSERS
#£3,757,753,691 Kkt 2 #x  FtE 4
(BER)EESESBARRAAA—KERE
RARI R —RALEZHE -

5. BRESEUNZEEERZETIALE
¥ B3,455,753,691 [k i 17 - ifn & (& A% 5%
£ BERELYT BERGRE BEEHEX
TREMEZTAZEEEREZEEX
A e
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no
person (other than the directors or chief executive of
the Company) who was recorded in the register of the
Company had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and
in the section “Share option scheme” below, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other

body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 26 to the financial

statements.

FERRRHEMATREG KA
ARG 2SR RE (&)

BREXBEEEIN R_ZTTANF=H
=t—H #MEXRAXAECMCEZ
AL (RRREFHITHRARRIN R
REZ B HAERER D P A RIERE S
N E R P EXVEB 2K B30 80 2 B TE
BRAARNRBEEZIEDIORR  HIRIE
BHENHABKRIIEIZ6HRRERLARAD
BIFIRIF BRI 2 EmBOK A ©

EERBERORESF ZER

B EXTEERRN RABERD 2 #EaE Rk
KRB R TN [RERES AR EEZR
Sho RFRNEMRHE XERTFEME
FHARERTAZERBIARANF FLAE
BEEARRRODSIESMER 2 ER -
mKEFMBETETAXZER R
ANRaE - HER AR AN B QT
MR ZMEARME L EMZH &
FEESFAREMEMEEESZSERN -

B RSt &

RNRRRE —HEEREE ([%EtE])
ZETEIZ BT M ARNE®E S ERIE
HEB & ER2EEL TEHB REIR -
FZETE 2 E— T HBRERMIEBRERM
7126
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BBIRFESTE (8)
The following table discloses the movements in the F R AR A EKRITE 2 08I HEE S0
Company's share options outstanding during the year: ™
Number of share options
EREZA
At Effect of lapsed  Exercised At
Name or category 1 April bonus during during 31 March Date of grant of Exercise period ~ Exercise price of
of participant 2008 issue’ theyear  the year 2009 share options of share options  share options””
R-BENE  EAAR RER RER R-BENE BhiE BhRE BhRE
SRERLARA BA-H LB ¥ fif ZR=t-H RiAH frEs fie@"
HKS per share
gt
Directors
g2
M. Wilson Ng 20,000,000 1,000,000 - - 21,000,000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
REEEE ZSTHERAZTHA ZTRtEMA-TLAZ
S 1) Y
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 20,000,000 1,000,000 - - 21,000,000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
RERLL CESEEACTEE ZERCERACTAR
“F-ZEBAZTAR
Nir. Ng Wee Keat 18,000,000 900,000 - - 18900000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
RERRE CESEEACTEE ZERLERACTAR
“F-ZEBAZAR
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,000,000 900,000 - - 18900000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
RRLL ZETHERACTER ZTRUEMACTLAZ
“F-EBAZAR
s, Lilian Ng 12,000,000 600,000 - - 12600000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
RAELL ZETHERACTER ZTRUEMACTLAE
“F-EBAZAR
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 12,000,000 600,000 - - 12600000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
Ritgat ZTRLFMACTEA ZIRtERACTtRE
“F-EBAZAR
Mr. Yu Wai Man 12,000,000 600,000 - - 12600000 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
HEXRE CESERACTLR ZERCERACTAR
“F-ZEBAZAR
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 14,000,000 700,000 (14,700,000) - - 210407 270407 to 26-04-12 0.2667
BRELE ZETHERACTER CTRUEMACTLAZ
“F-EBAZAR
126,000,000 6,300,000 (14,700,000) - 117,600,000
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Name or category
of participant

SRERAIRN

Other employees
HftRs
In aggregate

A
af

Number of share options
EREHE

At Effect of lapsed  Exercised At
1 April bonus during during 31 March
2008 issue theyear  the year 2009
R-ZENE BAAR RER RER R-BENEF
mA-H LHE 73! fif =ZR=t-H
22,800,000 1,080,000 (2,250,000) - 21,630,000
148,800,000 7380,000 (16,950,000) - 139,230,000

*  The price and number of the relevant share options have

been adjusted due to the bonus issue.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or

indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business

of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,

or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during the year.

P40
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fE IR T & ()
Date of grant of Exercise period
share options of share options
RhiE RhRE
ReEH fies
210407 21-04-07 t0 26-04-12

ERLFMACTLR

CESLEMACT4AE
ZE-ZENAZ 1A

Exercise price of
share options””
BhE
i@

HKS per share
§lkiEn

0.2667

* AHEBREZEBLRBECHBEITAR

EH T % o

w6 IR 2 17 (P R AR S AT ALAR -
SR A TR A 2 LA SR B T T AR -

EECEa0ER
FRCEEEHRENADA  HERAD
A~ o H A B B A R Sk R R B A A
A EHARBEEBEERNBEZER
BH P E RN EER EAMES -
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable
to the five largest customers accounted for 107.4% of
the Group's total sales, which includes loss on trading
of securities and fair value loss of securities in aggregate
of HK$63,646,000, for the year. The aggregate sales
attributable to the largest customer accounted for 73.5%
of the Group’'s total sales for the year. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers
accounted for 44.7% of the Group's total cost of sales for
the year. The aggregate purchases attributable to the largest
supplier accounted for 27.19% of the Group's total cost of

sales for the year.

None of the directors of the Company, or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to
the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’'s issued share capital had any beneficial

interest in the suppliers or customers mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 ("HKAS
24') "Related Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group
during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. Certain transactions included in note 31 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
as defined under the Listing Rules which are detailed in the

following paragraphs.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected
transactions and the transactions as disclosed in note 31
to the financial statements, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

FEHEBRREF

EIEFEN  AEEBRAAREFPEMLHZE
HER WAFEZASEHAHEEHE (B
REBXF CEBRBHF 2 ATEAEAS
B4 63,646,000 L) 2 107.4% ° A F
EREEGAEFPEEZAREERE 14
NEEBIEERE273.5% - NEB T AR
JEREMzBBER HEAFEZAE
BAEEEKRNZ244.7% REEARNEEH
BEAHEREL ABEERE (hXEE
MIHE AR 227.10% ©

ARAPEFHBFETM2BEA LK
EEMABEAARAD EITRAS%IA L
ZARBERBER LA BEEEHKEP
hHBE A ERER -

EBEALRS
AEERFANETEBEESHERSE
2457 (BB @ E R 2457 ]) [ B RE &
ATBBEIFMRERNZBEBEALR
P BN E KM GEST o FR RIS W
KW FEI1Z2HE TR IER L™ RPT
RELBERS ZERXHIHBHRN
LE-R=
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The directors have reviewed the following connected
transaction under which the independent shareholders’
approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been obtained.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting on 4 September 2006, ACE Properties
Pte. Ltd. ("ACE"), a subsidiary of the Company, was granted
a mortgage loan in sum of SG$12,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$61,625,000) from a fellow subsidiary of the Group on
27 September 2006. At 31 March 2009, the outstanding
balance of mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary
of the Group amounted to SG$10,964,000 (equivalent
to HK$55,915,000). The mortgage loan advanced from
a fellow subsidiary of the Group bears interest at 4.25%
per annum for the first year, 4.75% per annum for the
second year, and 0.5% per annum above the commercial
financing rate quoted by United Overseas Bank Limited for
the third year and thereafter. The mortgage loan is secured
by a legal mortgage on the ACE's investment property with
a carrying amount of HK$221,850,000 as at the balance
sheet date. During the year, ACE paid interest expenses of
HK$2,968,000 for the mortgage loan.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was

held by the public as at the date of this report.

BEXS (&)
EFZEEMTIMERS MxSHE
X5 BES LR BB 14AT FT# 2 B L
AR SR ML ARE o

BER-_ZZETNFLARBRITZRE
HRIREg F@iBe TBRER - ARAIZ
i} /& A FIACE Properties Pte. Ltd. ([ACE])
R_EBEEXFALA-_++HERER—
Al A R M8 2 A% H 7% 8012,500,0008
7T (F8 %5 5261,625,000/% 7T) 2 I B E &
CTHRZTETENF=ZA=+—H &~&H
—HREMBRAARMN ZIZBE R
KB IE & # 510,964,000% 7T (FHF R
55,915,000/ 7T) - A% E —E R R K

BRRIRN ZIRIE ﬁ?kﬁ“ﬁ—iﬁiﬁ g
425B 5T E F B T F I F B4.75
ﬁ"”ﬂ BA%_E&E@:HU&ﬁ

TERRA ﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁmﬁé
05Fu+’%ﬂ§o;%zz%%§ KA & E B
2 B8R {8 /221,850,000 T ZACEHR &
VI ZEERBER - RANFER - ACE
X TR BE R 2 R B F X &2,968,000/%

7’]:0

RHANBIEFERE
BERBRARARMBZARERMERESAHR
HE RAFEBH 2FALTHEAER
NAlZ BEITIRAAEFE R D25% °
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the

Group are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wilson Ng

Chairman

Hong Kong
22 July 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BIERETR &

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited set out on pages 47 to 163
which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

BHELEETEBAERAA
ZERR
(RERZZME L HFRA])

BPEEZENEITEZ163HEMNFHAL
SEEFBEARAAMBME - LY R
XEE_ZTTEANF=ZA=+—HBHESE
BERBRMAREERAGBRAHEZ
HIEFENGEEWER FRARRER
BPPRR FReHEIRERUALRTES
ST ERER AN E A B SRR R o

EERMBHRRARENER

ERAREZARARBEEAESHNAS
B E B B S A E RN F B QA K
PlzBBERERSGIILEEE M AR M
HZEV R - ELBETBRER
EfMe il ERRREHLEEMAQ
7o L 51) R AR BE AY R BB AE B - LAE BY 55 ¥R
RAFEARNMRFXERMEBRNERK
SHRRERA  EEMERBE NS IEE
N &R g FHEE -
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B BETER &

RN EE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BIERETR &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group's loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

22 July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FEWR

Year ended 31 March 2009
HE-_ZZTAF-A=-+—HILEFE

2009 2008
“EENE —ZEN\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt THET FHET
REVENUE A 5 219,148 303,482
Cost of services provided PR IRS A AR (53,631) (61,500)
Gross profit 7 165,517 241,982
Other income and gains LN 6 5 15,892 13,029
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHA (17,420) (4,561)
Administrative expenses TBRX (38,490) (45,389)
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER FR (27,595) 10,293
Other expenses, net HibAx 58 6 (5,833) (3,593)
Fair value losses on cruise ships B N FHEESSE (56,970) -
Fair value gains/(losses) REME 2 R TEE
on investment properties Wi/ (B8) 14 (102,000) 76,430
Finance costs RENA 7 (7,186) (11,481)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREARR (BE) 6 (74,085) 276,710
Tax A 9 24,132 131
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AEERMN/ (FB) (49,953) 276,841
Attributable to: T AT :
Equity holders of the Company KRARREREA 10 (69,704) 176,198
Minority interests DHRR R 19,751 100,643
(49,953) 276,841
DIVIDEND BRE 11
Proposed final BEARH 20,179 -
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ADFREBR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY REFEA
EQUITY HOLDERS BiEERERN/
OF THE COMPANY (B1]) 12
Basic (2008: restated) HA(ZEEN\E : 8F5)) HK(1.21) centsi&fll  HK3.15 cents/& 1l
Diluted (2008: restated) B (ZTTNEFE L&) N/ARER  HK3.12 centsi{ll
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEERER
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 FET FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEREE 13 236,887 360,719
Investment properties "EYE 14 624,250 753,700
Prepaid land premiums TEFH(E 15 15,045 16,656
Property under development BERPME 16 - -
Available-for-sale investments AHIEE 2 IRE 780 780
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 24 11,193 276
Pledged time deposit BRI E B 20 - 17,550
Total non-current assets EMBEERRR 888,155 1,149,681
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 796 840
Prepaid land premiums T H(E 15 786 910
Trade receivables, prepayments, JEWE HERK ~ AR FIE
deposits and other receivables e M E M EIWER 18 52,357 95,159
Equity investments at fair value BBBHEAFEA
through profit or loss FIER Z IRHEIE 19 207,395 31,571
Due from a related company JE U5 B3 R R FRIE 31(d) - 345
Pledged time deposit BT HER 20 17,550 -
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFEY 20 276,039 364,920
Total current assets MEEERT 554,923 493,745
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FRIBITER 21 26,577 31,898
Mortgage loan advanced from EESUYPNSE AN
a fellow subsidiary RRER 22, 31(f) 3,305 3,553
Trade payables, accruals, other JETE ZERR - FERTHIA -
payables and deposits received Hit B IBRR R B SRS 23 48,566 74,310
Tax payable FE#FR IR 3,747 3,803
Due to a related company FEfT R R RIFIA 31(d) 1,004 -
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 83,199 113,564
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 471,724 380,181
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRD
LIABILITIES afE 1,359,879 1,529,862
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HeAERRBR

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

2009 2008
—EENE —TT)\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Brat FHBT FHIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 21 70,544 97,094
Mortgage loan advanced from A RMEARBR 2
a fellow subsidiary RIBEN 22,31(H) 52,610 62,493
Loans advanced from minority REEWB AR
shareholders of the Group's DB R BT
subsidiaries LB 31(e) 222,727 233,421
Deposits received Bz e 23 9,064 7,562
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 24 20,143 34,349
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEERE 375,088 434919
Net assets BEFRE 984,791 1,094,943
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AARREREA
holders of the Company PEfG R
Issued capital B EITRR AR 25 14,414 13,728
Reserves G 27 948,026 1,059,052
Proposed final dividend EEARHRE 11 20,179 -
982,619 1,072,780
Minority interests LERRER 2,172 22,163
Total equity T ER 984,791 1,094,943
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
HER =HEG
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE T AE
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FERREREHERR
Year ended 31 March 2009
BE_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE
Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company

KLAREREARS
Cruise
Share  Share ship  Exchange Proposed
Issued  premium ~option Contributed revaluation translation  Retained final Minorty ~ Total
Notes capital  account  reseve  suplus  reseve  resenve  profits  diidend  Total interests  equity
L] Ed HERR
fiid cRAOR% RORER BRERE RARR EMRE EXEBR REEH RERS g EE RESE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HK§00O  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO000
thn  TEn TR TR TEn TEm TR ThE A TEn fiEn
At 1 April 2007 RZEECERA-R 1209 190,549 4542 162587 9927 2340 332121 27054 74118 (1) 740447
Surplus on revaluation e
of cruise ships B 13 - - - -6 - - - 61 418 102%
Bichange realignment B - - - - -l - -0 188 11956
Total nome and expense B RIER
forthe yearrecogised 2 AEBNR
directly in equity 4% - - - - 6178 1027 - - 16449 5803 2%
Proft or the yeer RERRA - - - - - - 176198 - 176198 100645 276841
Totalincome and RERYR
expense for the year 4% - - - - 6178 10211 176,198 - 192647 106446 299093
Finel 2007 diidend dedered  ~SE+FEERRERS - - - - - - - (1054) (27054 - (204)
Issue of shares Bkl % 1630 166516 (8.240) - - - - - 159900 - 159900
Share isue expenses IR 5 - (44) - - - - - - (44m) - (44)
Cranted share options RTERE % - - 10504 - - - - - 10504 - 1050
Dividend paid o a B-fI) 8RR
minorty shareholder LRE - - - - - - - - - (83512 (83510)
At 31 March 2008 A-FENE=A=T-R 13728 352630 6800 162567 16105 12611 508319 - 1072780 22,163 1,094943
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEKREEREEHERER
Year ended 31 March 2009

HE_ZZNF=A=+—HILHFE
Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company

KAAREREARL
Cruise
Share  Share ship  Exchange Proposed
Issued  premium option Contributed revaluation ~translation Retained final Minorty ~ Total
Notes capitl  account  reseve  suplus  reseve  reseve  profits  diidend  Total interests  equity
L] B DERR
fid cRORE RORER BRERE RARR EMER ENER REEH RERS ait BE hEEE
HK$000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HK§00O  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO000
thn TR TE TAr  TEn TEm TR ThE Thn fEn T
At 1 April 2008 RZEENERA-R 13728 352630 6800 162587 16105 12611 508319 - 1072780 22,163 1,094,943
Defict on reveluation LBl
of cruise ships Bl 13 - - - - (16,105) - - - (16105 (12796)  (28901)
Bxchange realgnment EiEE - - - - - (439) - - (4%) 0% (3298)
Totalnome and expense B RiER
forheyearrecogised  ZAERNE
diecty in equiy 4 - - - - (1610s)  (43%) - - (14D (32199)
Proft/(oss) for e year ~~ AEREH/ (BE) - - - - - - (69704) - (69704 19751 (49.953)
Totel income and RERUR
expense for the year g - - - - (16105)  (4352)  (69,704) - (%0161) 8009 (8215
Bonus issue Bk 5 68 (650) - - - - - - - - -
Proposed final 2009 dvidend  —SENFEEAZHRE 10 - - - - - - (019 079 - - -
Dividend paid t 2 Ef-fio8RR
minorty shareholder L8 - - - - - - - - - (28000)  (28000)
Share option zpsed RERKTZ
during the year Ehi - - () - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2009 REBENE=R=T-R 14414 3519445 6057 162587 S B50F 49179 20179 982619 2070 984791

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves *
of HK$948,026,000 (2008: HK$1,059,052,000).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HFEHSRER
Year ended 31 March 2009
HE-ZTZAF=_A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EENEF ZEENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REER RS
ACTIVITIES nE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB ATEF (B8) : (74,085) 276,710
Adjustments for: IANIESE A L
Finance costs BB A 7 7186 11,481
Bank interest income BT A 5 (4,338) (8,559)
Dividend income I B A 5 (3,025) (516)
Depreciation e 6 28,743 40,784
Equity-settled share option expense VAR #E 45 5 2 B8 B B 2 6, 26 - 10,504
Revaluation surplus of office premises ERBEBAMREMEL
in Hong Kong BER 6 (4) (307)
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREHE 15 836 902
Fair value loss on equity FERBEREEATEETIE
investments at fair value ZREREZATEE
through profit or loss, net B8 5 43,965 878
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment ~ HEWMEZ A FEE
properties BB/ () 14 102,000 (76,430)
Waiver from creditors and a related BEEAR—HBEELNT
company on long outstanding HERBNKER
trade payables HENE IR 5 (7,437) -
Impairment of items of property, M- BEREEER
plant and equipment ZRME 6 5,837 3,900
Deficit on revaluation on cruise ships o & B AL 13 56,970 -
156,648 259,347
Decrease in inventories BEZRD 44 322
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, JEUW'E ZBR 3k - JE{ 5B
prepayments, deposits and me REMEKERZ
other receivables Vo / 12 m) 42,881 (12,615)
Increase in equity investments BERBERRATEBIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss Mt & Z 38 hn (219,789) (13,660)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due  JEUBHE A A ZUE
from a related company 2D/ (Em) 345 (345)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, BN E SRR - Bt RIE
accruals, other payables H Al B RTBR TR
and deposits received Bliee zgm,/ Cad) (16,805) 3,401
Increase/(decrease) in an amount ENBEEARREL
due to a related company 2,/ i) 1,004 (7,332)
Exchange adjustment BEE 5, ol 2 22,736 (5,613)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations K@/ (AR) R4 %K 28B4 (12,936) 223,505
Interest received B FH B 4,338 8,559
Interest paid ERFE (7,186) (11,481)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) Ei&@/ BEENEH (54) 36
Overseas tax paid Hi%ﬁlﬁ (909) (236)
Dividend received KR E 3,025 516
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BEEBRRERA/ (FH)
from operating activities HE (13,722) 220,899
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FEENRERE

Year ended 31 March 2009

HE-_ZZTAF-A=-+—HILEFE

2009 2008
—EENE ZEENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiaz FHx FET
Net cash inflow/(outflow) REXEBRERA/(RE)
from operating activities FEE (13,722) 220,899
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRE
ACTIVITY mE
Purchases of items of property, plant BEDE BEX
and equipment and net cash outflow FEBAREEED
from investing activity RemmFE 13 (2,564) (4,656)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITBHZRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHIR M PTS30E - 155,465
New bank loans ERITERN 40,000 74,822
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (71,871) (106,876)
Repayment of a mortgage loan advanced f{EERZMH BRI Z
from a fellow subsidiary RIBEN (3,366) (3,230)
Dividends paid BERRE = (27,054)
Dividends paid to a minority shareholder B V8 E 2 & (28,000) (83,512)
Repayment of loans advanced from BELBBERR2MNT
minority shareholders to a subsidiary MERBZER - (19,127)
Net cash outflow from financing activities R & /EBIR & R F5 (63,237) (9,512)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) BeRELEEY
IN CASH AND CASH #m,/ (A)
EQUIVALENTS ek (79,523) 206,731
Cash and cash equivalents FzHE R
at beginning of year ReSEY 364,920 149,421
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ MNEER &8 2 7 & (9,358) 8,768
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBRER
AT END OF YEAR REEEY 276,039 364,920
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBLEEYZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEDMN
Cash and bank balances Be MBITERE 20 108,032 5,905
Non-pledged time deposits with BB \B [ROE 2w #A IR
original maturity of less than TR=ZEAZ
three months when acquired AT EF R 20 168,007 359,015
276,039 364,920
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

BALANCE SHEET
HERER
31 March 2009
—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —FENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WMz - WBEKREE 385 481
Interests in subsidiaries PR EPNEE 17 519,199 410,139
Available-for-sale investments AIHIHE 28 E 780 780
Total non-current assets IERBEERT 520,364 411,400
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Prepayments and deposits TENRIERIEZS 18 737 730
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 20 197,244 277,052
Total current assets MENEELRE 197,981 277782
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Due to subsidiaries FEASHT B A B TE 17 112,587 70,592
Accruals FEEt IR 23 1,464 2,049
Total current liabilities mENEEARRE 114,051 72,641
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFEE 83,930 205,141
Net assets EEFE 604,294 616,541
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 25 14,414 13,728
Reserves EE 27 569,701 602,813
Proposed final dividend EoRHIIR B 11 20,179 -
Total equity E 7 AR RE 604,294 616,541
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
EHER HEH
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE TTIER 4B
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2.1

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
comprise the provision of cruise ship charter services,
hotel operations, property investments and securities

trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. New Century Investment
Pacific Limited is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion
of the directors, Huang Group (BVI) Limited, which is
beneficially and wholly-owned by a discretionary trust,

is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, cruise ships, office premises
and equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars ("HK$").

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

BAF5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

ANFEIEHR
AL EERTEERAAARER
EAMAKZZBERAR - ARFZ
1 9% = B 7 A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda °
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MEARIZETBEB RIRMAH KA
ERG HERE MERELE

KA A ANew Century Investment
Pacific Limited (70 & fE X B¥ & =%
MLz ~al) 2 &2 F - New
Century Investment Pacific Limited/3y
Huang Group (BVI) Limited (7 %88
BRREBESEMAK L 2AR) 2MES
ENBRAR - MEBFZER  #H—

2RELE= R EMA ZHuang
Group (BVI) LimitedJ3 A A 2 5 #&

* )'L/\ o

R HFHRRIDBRIBEFZESFHAE
Mz BAEMBEREER ([FEBY
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B o

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
and intercompany balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and

net assets or liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new
interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification
of Financial Assets
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HKAS 19 — The Limit on a

Defined Benefit Asset,

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Minimum Funding
Requirements and

their Interaction
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2.2

2.3

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The adoption of these new interpretations and
amendments has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements and there have been no
significant changes to the accounting policies applied

in these financial statements.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27

Consolidated and Separate

Amendments

Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate '

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs *

HKFRS 2 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations '

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 3

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
instruments: Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments '

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments '

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M EE

31 March 2009

—EEANF=A=+—H
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A F5 3R WP aE

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

2ICEMEERERZEBY
BRELE 2 E (F)

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39

Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

P58

Presentation of Financial Statements '

Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements *

Amendments to HKAS 32 financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation !

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items *

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Embedded
Derivatives 2

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate !

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation °

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners *

Transfers of Assets from Customers 3
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also
issued Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording and is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009. Except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 although there are separate transitional

provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 30

June 2009

K Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008

* Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments
to HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 8,
HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 17,
HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27,
HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36,
HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40, HKAS 41, HK(IFRIC)-Int
9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B o

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 230 EMGEEFRENZFEH

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, it has concluded that while
the adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised)
may result in new or amended disclosures and the
adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 23 (Revised)
and HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in
accounting policies, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's

results of operations and financial position.

BRELE 2 E (F)

A& B IE £ 51 1 B X BR R 0E L 3
RIMEERTN B BM B REEIN
FE-FNAMAL AEESGHW
T KA AEM B MEERES
SRAME B T ERE 1R (EIERT) /]
%‘E?a%“éﬁﬁlﬂj%ﬂl’\]?&ééﬂ?ﬂgﬂkﬁ Al 3
B MEAEEVBHRELERFEIHR
(BIEFT) ~ BA ST HERFE235 (&
ERT) ME B G ERIF275 (K
R FIREER S RERAEMED &
LEFTHIRT MEET BT BT B RE
AR H AR B K E AN
BARREEERTE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 B2 REME

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and

the other parties have an interest.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture's operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c¢) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired assets, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has

joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an

additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
value of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the cruise ship revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the cruise ship revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:
Long-term leasehold hotel Over the remaining
properties in Indonesia lease terms
Medium-term leasehold Over the remaining
office premises lease terms
in Hong Kong
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33'/,%
equipment
20% to 25%

7% to 8%

Motor vehicles

Cruise ships

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

Q4AFTESTHEBE (F)

ME - -BERRBRITE (&)

HEITHEZATEE AR AERE
BEffEECAFEERERAERmMEL
BEADA -ME BEREKEE
BEEHNERBERELHEERZIE
IR o {5 1 AR RR T B DA BH B A
(REREEHE) BT REZE&S
B RPIEG - KR ZEH AR
SLUBEHR ZBBES ARER -
HEEGHEER NEMEERZ
HmEfRHEEETE»EBRARE
wmAMERHEES -

TEREME BEAREEA Z
fiy 51 AT 52 PR 65 HA LA B AR DA i 8H L AR
AEHEEHFNBREEAHE T E
FrRZEBFRMT :

BEzEHHEE ZRHREE

B JE ) % FH
BEXEZPHEE RIHKREE
MANEYE FH
HEMEERE RFeREE
& B
B RKE 10%Z%E33"/,%
K & 1
RE 20% % 25%
S U 7%Z8%

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

P65



P66

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B o

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and
overhaul costs and are included in cruise ships
and depreciated to reflect the consumption of
benefits, which are to be replaced or restored by the

subsequent drydocking generally every two years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the balance

sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income

statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income

statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Property under development

A property under development is a project in which
the Group has an interest either as the developer or
as the ultimate owner of the completed property. An
interest in a property under development is stated at
cost or carrying amount at the date of change of the
intended use of the property, less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.
Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes
a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required under the

contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the

balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any dividends on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policy set

out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as

well as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a
separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other
income” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the

available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there
is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. These techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same and a discounted cash flow

analysis.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic

prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not

exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able
to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they

are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment

losses on these assets are not reversed.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

QAFTEESTHEBE (F)

TREERME(E)

B H A SRR 2 B ()

R BEEERERPRERBD - m
BMAOBEERBERIRZEHER
BRI AR oERZBREBRES
BBABBERYE - H&R R
BEEBIER KSR ER  MEAR
EEFREETHBEEAREEEHZ
BHMRARBR ©

BB W E 5 BR K N E Ath FE UK BR BT
o WMHIREBER (WES AR
BEAEGBRHRERNYIE N AR
B mEEEIEARRHRY
BEFEABRINNETEZERNEE) R
RARE A EAIRER 2R EREK
Wl Fr A B B RIR - R & FHRE
BE - -BMUERZEEEZEBEMS
BERMAL BREZEL &
A AEARE R RER -

LARE AN 5T 18 79 &

MEEBREBRERA BAVEEE
EREAEMmM AR FEMETS R
ZIELTERETAHERERIS
FRERSHRREERAERMAR
ARREREBLZBUESREERTT
M5Ok ERPITFRER 2 ZFEET
B -REEEZREBENEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

P73



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B ER A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made
for available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not

reversed through income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised where:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired;

«  the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third

party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where
the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred

asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
an amount due to a related company, a mortgage loan
advanced from a fellow subsidiary, loans advanced
from minority shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries
and interest-bearing borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. The related interest expenses
is recognised within “Finance costs” in the income

statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well

as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories, comprising food and beverage for the
hotel operations, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to

use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or

a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,

on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

« where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing these activities;
(b) slot machine income, on the sharing basis over
the total cash receipt from the slot machines

placed in the cruise ships;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

(d) income from hotel operations, when the services

are rendered;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset;

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established; and

(g) realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses, on change in fair value

on the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 26. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked
to the price of the shares of the Company (“market

conditions”), if applicable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2009

—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described

in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the
ORSO and MPF Schemes respectively. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and their number of years of services,
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the schemes. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the schemes, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance

with the rules of the schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.

Dividend

Final dividend proposed by the directors is classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet, until it has
been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When the dividend has been approved by
the shareholders and declared, it is recognised as a
liability.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 $#

Hib{g 8 EF

BRIk F

AN x AR A R E B 2R KA 8 R
I FE Mz 57 5E kAT &) ([ 2R IR
T8l RARIE CGRHI1E R TE 25 8 5
1) Z 5LE AR HE A TE 2 R IKR
B8 ((rE2stE]) - oRlHE
B2 HEBERKEEI R BE S
BzREZ2M - HRTDIKEREREE
ARFezBO L MNFEFE LR
BZEEZHAURIPEMEE
Wa RSP -MEAGEZEESR
AREBZEENR YHBELERE
ZEEHAE - EBEARANEEYG
BFLERBSEHESAEEZ R
EH-FKEAEE ZEEBBEMR
ERON > RIBZFTEIRTE - 1B
BERNERAHREHREBAIRER R
HRERETAEHE -

& =B A
BRRARDRELE 2 HEE KRS R
PHEIARFAX

B’ 2
EFER AR ENRBRARE £
ERRILERN BoBREERE
2= R A R AR BE O N 2 98 ST B GK o
HxEREERRYLELF IR - A
ERSAIE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEE B ER QA

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X B HEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. The office
premises located in Hong Kong comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative
purposes. As these portions could be sold separately,
the Group accounts for the portion held to earn rentals

separately as investment properties.

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income
taxes in different jurisdictions depending on the routes
of the cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide,
if any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that
the Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the management obtained indemnity letters
from tenants to confirm that all relevant tax exposure
of the Group's cruise ships would be borne by the

tenants.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion
is supported by an independent professional appraiser
who was engaged by the Group during the year
to perform a valuation on the Group’s investment
properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March 2009,
the fair values of investment properties and cruise
ships amounted to HK$624,250,000 (2008:
HK$753,700,000) and HK$210,600,000 (2008:
HK$320,580,000), respectively, which were obtained

by reference to quoted second hand market prices.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The gross deferred tax asset
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2009
was HK$16,943,000 (2008: HK$4,739,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2009
was HK$182,121,827 (2008: HK$188,866,644).
Further details are contained in note 24 to the financial

statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (i) on a secondary

segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages
in the provision of chartering services of cruise

ships;
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) the hotel operations segment engages in the

operations of a hotel property in Indonesia;

(c) the property investments segment invests in
prime office space and commercial shops for its

rental income potential; and

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the
trading of marketable securities for short-term

investment purposes.

In determining the Group's geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to

the segments based on the location of the assets.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers
during the year (2008: Nil). During the vyear, the
Group included the securities trading segment as
one of its principal activities and accordingly its
financial information has been presented in a separate
segment. Prior year financial information has been

restated to conform with current year presentation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2009
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. pEER (&)
(i) Business segments (i) %58
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) TREJINARAEBEHE_ZTZT N
and certain assets, liabilities and expenditure FR-ZBEENF=ZA=+—H
information for the Group's business segments for IEFEREBZSBEZWA &
the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008. OoBBE)RETEE AE
KX 2 &R -
Group
A&H
Cruise ship
charter services  Hotel operations  Property investments  Securities trading ~ Consolidated
BRAERE BELE NERE R5EE &a
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZRRAF CRT)\F ZBEAE CTT)\F ZRRAF CTT)\F ZEEAE JTT)\F DRERAF 33\
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TER TEn TEr Tz TEr TEn TER  TEm  TiEx
Segment revenue: PRUA
Income from exteral RESNREPZ
customers LN 221823 242668 28089 26600 29857 27814 (60,621) 6400 219,148 303482
Other income and gains AR 17 39884 3448 1627 986 - - 11528 4437
Total Bt 21840 242671 37973 30048 31,484 28800 (60,621) 6400 230,676 307919
Segment results S5%4 101372 206559 (6015) (11415 (93,866) 80757 (60.804) 6329 (59313) 282230
Interest income and HERAR
unallocated gains AENEG 4368 19,299
Corporate and other SERER
unallocated expenses AOEFER (11,954) (13,338)
Finance costs BEARK (7186) (11,481)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATER|/ (Bi8) (74,085) 276710
Tax HA #1313

Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEEAF/ (BR) (49,953) 276,841
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEBEE (H)
(i) Business segments (continued) (i) ¥%2%8 (&)
Group
558
Cruise ship
charter services  Hotel operations ~ Property investments ~ Securities trading ~ Consolidated
BRBERE EERe NERE #5RE &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZREAE CTT)\F ZRRRF CTT\F ZBRANE CTT)\F DRRAE CTT)\F EEAE CET)E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000
Tén TEr TRz TEr Tz TEr TEn TEx  TER  TEx
Assets and labilties: BERAR:
Segment assets PREE 234216 368059 30950 41752 644,641 775139 225398 72542 1,135,205 1257492
Corporate and other EEREM
unallocated assets AOREE 307873 385934
Total assets LR 1,443,078 1,643 426
Segment liabiltties HEEE 23793 44461 21442 26,169 11929 9191 5 2 51169 79,823
Corporate and other EERAR
unallocated liabiliies AEAE 401,118 468,660
Total liabilties Baf 458287 548,483
Other segment information:  E 12 E&H :
Depreciation and amortisation 7% Ji%14 24109 35871 3749 4091 1,296 1,264 - - 29154 41226
Corporate and other EERAR
unallocated amounts APESE 45 460
29579 41,686
Impairment of ftems of VERY
property, plant and RERERZ
equipment HE - - (5837) (3900) - - - - (5837) (3,900)
Fair value gains/(losses) ~ FANEZLT
on investment properties B8N &/ (&) - - - - (102,000) 76430 - - (102,000) 76430
Revaluation defict of Pasftsy -
cruise ships charged to EhEERm
income statement Mk (56,970) - - - - - - - (56970) -
Revaluation gain of BOENE B
office premises e - - - - 4 307 - - 4 307
Fair value loss on FRRREEAT
equity investments (BB 55 2 g
at fair value through RECLTEE
profit or loss, net Bl 58 - - - - - - (43965)  (878) (43,965)  (878)
Cepial expenditure BAxH - 1396 2449 2733 83 14 - - 25 4183
Corporate and other EERAR
unallocated amounts APLEE N 513

2564 4656
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE

31 March 2009

—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. pEER (&)
(ii) Geographical segments (i) ESHE
The following table presents revenue and certain TREJINARAEBEHE_ZTZT N
asset and expenditure information for the Group's FR-ZBEENF=ZA=+—H
geographical segments for the years ended 31 FFERBESRAZBRARS
March 2009 and 2008. FEREERSTEZEE -

Southeast Asia

except Hong Kong Hong Kong Consolidated
RED
(TaEEHR) BB &a
Group 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
BN 3 ZBTAE —TT\F ZBEAE —TT/\F ZBEAE —TI)N\F

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRR T TRR T TRR TR

Segment revenue: 2EBA
Income from RENREP

external customers Z WA 259,550 278,408 (40,402) 25,074 219,148 303,482
Other income HiplgA

and gains P 11,242 4,418 286 19 11,528 4,437

270,792 282,826  (40,116) 25093 230,676 307919

Other segment HEitnE

information: BR:
Segment assets NEEE 531,689 770903 911,389 872,523 1,443,078 1,643,426
Capital expenditure BAXH 2,498 4,129 66 527 2,564 4,656
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover,
represents cruise ship charter service income, slot
machine income, income from hotel operations, gross
receivable from investment

rental income received,

5. WA~ Hfb A R Wi
WA(MEARE ZEXE) T 215
FRZEHEERBEA - A TH
WA BELERA REMEZ
B EEERESWANESFE TR

properties and income from securities trading during ANLBRE o
the year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as WA~ IR A R ZF Z 5T
follows:
Group
rEEH
2009 2008
—EEAE —TI)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t THET FHIT
Revenue WA
Cruise ship charter service income o E RS WA 124,375 153,475
Slot machine income A F I A 97,448 89,193
Income from hotel operations B AR U A 28,089 26,600
Gross rental income He W A4R%E 6 29,857 27,814
Gain/(loss) on trading of BEERFEEERS
equity investments at fair BREBEmRA T EE
value through profit or 5'JEEZHXTZ%TX§Z
loss held for trading* Wz, (E518)* (19,681) 6,762
Fair value loss on equity investments B iBEzIEAF(EE
at fair value through profit PR 2 BRI E 2
or loss, net* N EEEE - FEEr (43,965) (878)
Dividend income from equity BIEEERGBERIER
investments at fair value through BAFEEIRZ
profit or loss held for trading* IRAERE 2 IR B HA* 3,025 516
219,148 303,482
Other income Hipg A
Bank interest income FRITH B HA 4,338 8,559
Waiver from creditors and a related &AL —HBEQFER
company on long outstanding RHRAREENENES
trade payables BRX 7,437 -
Others HAt 4,117 4,470
15,892 13,029
*  During the year, the Group included the * RAEEA AKEKESE
securities trading segment as one of its principal EoRERESP —BEE = ES
activities and accordingly gain/(loss) on trading % At B f‘aﬁa’é‘%}ZHﬂZ 5/
of securities, fair value loss on securities and (BE) FHE2AFEEEIRE
dividend income have been classified as revenue. EREWABKEHR D ERK
Prior year financial information has been restated Ao 3T HEHARFEEBG H®RF
to conform with current year presentation. — B BEEHEFHNMBERIE
HE5 .
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31 March 2009

ZZEERF=A=1+—H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBLAERN, A (FE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REEBZBFHDER 7 (B1E) 240
charging/(crediting): B (FFA) -
Group
AEME
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNGF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iigza FET FHET
Depreciation e 13 28,743 40,784
Auditors’ remuneration Z BT BN & 1,300 1,480
Employee benefit expense EERAMNFAX
(including directors’ remuneration (BEMF8Z
in note 8): EEMe) -
Wages and salaries TELRFS 19,591 19,150
Equity-settled share AR A5
option expense BB AR RE BT 2 26 - 10,504
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHR 670 673
Total staff costs B TRRAN4EFE 20,261 30,327
Minimum lease payments under T RAEFKE
operating leases on land and HEEHES
buildings TREE 170 158
Foreign exchange differences, net EHZR - FHE 27,595 (10,293)
Gross rental income THE U A LR 5 (29,857) (27,814)
Less: Direct operating expenses W EELERE 1,813 1,758
Net rental income Hae WA FEE (28,044) (26,056)
Other expenses: HaHX :
Revaluation surplus of office EHBERAE
premises in Hong Kong Y% 2 BER 13 (4) (307)
Impairment of items of property, e = L
plant and equipment HE ZRE 13 5,837 3,900
5,833 3,593
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31 March 2009
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB

Group

AEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EEZNEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interest on bank loans RITERZFIE 4,208 8,635

Interest on a mortgage loan advanced  FIXRHI B AR Z

from a fellow subsidiary RIBE R B 2,968 2,846
Interest on securities margin facilities EHRRZSEENL 10 -
7,186 11,481
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A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERIAENESTFEEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@)

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

EEMe

RIE A8 B & & B QAR
FI6VIEFTIE 2 A FEEE
ST

follows:
Group
KEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAEIT
Fees e 360 360
Other emoluments: Ham<e -
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 8,100 8,040
Bonuses TE4L 710 1,640
Equity-settled share option ARG REAEE ~
expenses FERR BT ST - 8,072
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET IR 435 457
9,245 18,209
9,605 18,569

In the prior year, certain directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements. The fair value
of these options, which has been recognised in
the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’

(i)

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERANVESHFEEM S
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM = (&)
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BUIFHTEF
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERZNR T 9B IERIT
directors during the year were as follows: EFEZESNT
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al R BRI A& 120 120
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth a2 ST 120 120
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEFRE 120 120
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable REE NI EFE R E I
to the independent non-executive directors HITEE2HEMEMES
during the year (2008: Nil). —ETNEFE\E) o
Executive directors (i) HiTEF
Pension
Salaries and scheme Total
allowances Bonuses  contributions remuneration
Eike
FeREE FEAL BE 2 MeBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
2009 —EENE
Executive directors: MITES
Mr. Wilson Ng EEELE 1,320 110 72 1,502
Ms. Sio lon Kuan mERLL 1,320 110 72 1,502
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEGELE 1,200 100 65 1,365
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERERLL 840 70 45 955
Ms. Lilian Ng BT 840 70 45 955
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRIEH L 600 50 32 682
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 1,080 110 60 1,250
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles SRS S E 900 90 44 1,034
8,100 710 435 9,245
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

€)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=Z/A=+—H

8. EERANESHFEEMS
(#&)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM = (&)
(if) Executive directors (continued) (i) BA7T7EF (&
Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
B8 BiRe

HeREH A BRERN st EIf R MeeR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FET T T
2008 —ETN\E
Executive directors: HTES:

Mr. Wilson Ng BEREEAE 1,290 220 1,850 75 3,435

Ms. Sio lon Kuan BRI 1,290 220 - 75 1,585

Mr. Ng Wee Keat HERLE 1,170 300 1,665 74 3,209

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EBH XL 810 105 1,665 46 2,626

Ms. Lilian Ng BRELL 810 105 1,110 46 2,071

Ms. Chen Ka Chee Bkt 570 150 1,110 29 1,859

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 1,050 270 672 66 2,058

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles % 83%E 4 1,050 270 - 46 1,366

8,040 1,640 8,072 457 18,209

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2008: five) executive directors,
details of whose remuneration are disclosed in (a)

above.

ANEE WAL EE R E
TR BREME 2L -

b) ENEEHFEEM=
FRNIUGR=HEBRBER
T (ZZEZENF:AU) VITE
FOHEBMMESZ2FBE R EX(@)
R EE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA F5 #R RBi

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

9.

TAX 9.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The lower
Hong Kong profits tax rate is effective from the year
of assessment 2008/2009, and so is applicable to
the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
whole year ended 31 March 2009. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

BIE

BEBENNER IR ZFERNEST
BE A 2 b EHFE R B s M1216.5% (=
TZE)NFE 175%) 2B EHBE &
EHNEBMNESBHMEH=_ZEZ N\
—EENRBMFERER - AL@E
ARBE-_ZTTNF=A=+—H
FEEFEANREBEENETR
FIE o H fth b [ 2 FE R B % A B 18
TR AREBEBAEBRR ZRIT
ME - IRBEBBHEN  ZREREM

and practices in respect thereof. o
2009 2008
ZE2hEF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Group: REEHE -
Current — Hong Kong REE—BH
Charge for the year REFEHIA 127 1,102
Underprovision/(overprovision) BAFEREBIR
in prior years (EBEERE) (25) 22
Current — Elsewhere AEE— Bz 889 809
Deferred (note 24) EERIE (MI5E24) (25,123) (2,064)
Total tax credit for the year FARIEE LR (24,132) (131)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE

31 March 2009
—ZEERF=A=1+—H

TAX (continued) 9. HHIE(48)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable HREARAR REKIDHERFE
to profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for ECBERZAEERRAE 2B AT
the countries in which the Company and the majority wmAL (BB ERzMES (K
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense ) BIRZEERMRERAE AL HZ
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the HER AR BRAA X (BETE R ER)
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the HERBE ZEEENOT ¢
effective tax rates, are as follows:
Group - 2009 Hong Kong Elsewhere*
AEE-ZBERNF B At B
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FHx FHx FTER

Profit/(loss) before tax BBiaTER,/ (BR) (161,745) 87,660 (74,085)
Tax at the statutory tax rate  BEEREGEZHE (26,688) 165 16,260 185 (10,428) 14.1
Effect on opening deferred ~ FIEBEL BRI

tax of decrease in rate RENF2 (1,947) 12 - - (1,947) 2.6
Income not subject to tax BEFBMA (863) 05 (20,543) (23.4) (21,406) 28.9
Expenses not deductible for tax R AT HIHF S 3,588 2.2) 4,443 5.1 8,031 (10.8)
Overprovision in current tax ~ BEFEE EFA

in prior years BEEE (25) - - - (25) -
Tax losses utilised from R B AT ER R A0

previous period HHER (162) 0.1 (320) (0.4) (482) 0.7
Unrecognised deferred AEBEEHE

tax assets EE 552 (03) 1 - 553 (0.8)
Others -0 524 (03) 1,048 12 1572 @.1)
Tax charge/(credit) at the BASEERHXHE

Group's effective rate LHBERY/ (BR) (25,021) 155 889 1.0 (24,132) 326
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 53R R 5

31 March 2009
—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H
9. TAX (continued)

9. HiiE (&)

Group - 2008 Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
AEE-ZFT)\F Bk EftipE* At
HK$'000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %
FiEn TAT TAL
Profit before tax SR AR R 25,494 251216 276,710
Tax at the statutory taxrate  RETHEEHEZHE 4,461 175 46,132 183 50,593 183
Income not subject to tax BERHMA (2,954) (11.6)  (46,465) (18.4) (49,419) (179)
Expenses not deductible for tax A a1 H% 115 05 30 - 145 0.1
Underprovision in current tax ~ BEFEEHHE
in prior years BT R n 0.1 - - py) -
Unrecognised deferred AEDEEHE
tax assets BE 1,466 5.7 1,111 0.4 2,577 0.9
Others Hfty - - (4,049) (16) (4,049) (15)
Tax charge/(credit) at the BASBERHXHE
Group's effective rate LRERY/ (B%) 3,110 12.2 (3,241 (13) (131) 0.1

* Elsewhere comprised of Singapore and Indonesia with
statutory tax rates of 18% (2008: 18%) and 10%
(2008: 10%), respectively.

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2009 includes a loss of HK$12,247,000 (2008: a loss
of HK$2,448,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 27(b)).
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18%) }100% (ZZ = )\4F : 10%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

1. DIVIDEND 1. KkRE
2009 2008
—EBhF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR

Proposed final — HK0.35 cent BEARARE —SREERK
(2008: Nil) per ordinary share 0358 (=T NF : ) 20,179 -
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to AREEBRERABBRBAFZFARNRZ

12.

the approval of the Company's shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the
bonus issue of the Company during the year (note
25).

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per
share amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

12.

BRRABGEITZRRAEFANS £
HEE ©

AR EBERBREFEARE
HERER S (FHE)

BREXEF, (BB) HiRBARQ
AEMRREREABGBREE R
(BB RAFEEEITERR
ZIMBETFHEETE - T AT E A
F B 2R X BV R AN 2 N B AT AL AR (B
FE25) °

tﬂxféﬁ%%%'/(ﬁﬂﬁ)ﬁhﬁﬂi&“

RN A AN F E R
%'/(JEE'HE\ CAERERZEBR
MEFHBRAFEEEITZE
BEE ARBRERGERTE#HE
BEEBARBEGAR/TENBR/E
BERRRERERTZEBRINE
FHEETE

Fﬁi
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B o

31 March 2009

—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. A A REERIREZ S AE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EERERN (FE) (8)
COMPANY (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) EREAREERF, (BB JhiR
per share amounts are based on: AT HIEFHE
2009 2008
—EEhF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
(Restated)
(&=5)
Earnings/(loss) BF, (&18)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary RAGIERRRERSE A
equity holders of the Company FEARH R (E518) (69,704) 176,198
Shares* IR 4*
Weighted average number of ordinary T ESREARZEF]
shares in issue during the year, (BE) REAZER
used in the basic earnings/(loss) BT S ERINE
per share calculation T8 5,765,288,705 5,595,602,968
Effect of dilution** — weighted average = BER &+ — L@
number of ordinary shares: Z N EL
Share options i f e - 50,038,146
5,765,288,705 5,645,641,114
*  The weighted average number of ordinary shares in * O RAMEFEZEBHTERRKRME

issue for both years has been adjusted to reflect the
bonus issue which took place during the year. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2008,
bonus shares were issued on the basis of one new
share for every twenty shares held on 2 September
2008.

**  There is no effect of dilution for the year ended 31 oK
March 2009 since the antidilutive effect was resulted
during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE

31 March 2009

ZZEERF=A=1+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.9% - BMERRE
Group rE
Long-term ~ Medium-term
leasehold hotel ~ leasehold office Furniture,
propertiesin ~ premises in Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles  Cruise ships Total
o BE
RARE HEHE BENE BR-
BEA%X  BOENR 58 RERRR hE L Ghl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

31 March 2009 ZEENEZB=1-H
At 31 March 2008 and RZFENE=A=+-Rk
at 1 April 2008: RZTRN\EMA-R:
Cost or valuation HASEE 25,436 4510 45,717 14,492 6,553 320,580 417,88
Accumulated depreciation 2HEiE
and impairment R (13,019) - (27,006) (11,670) (4,874) - (56,569)
Net canying amount EHSE 12417 4510 18711 2822 1,679 3205580 360,719
At 1 April 2008, net of RZETN\EOA-B -
accumulated depreciation kb ZERE
and impairment KB 5 12417 4510 18,711 282 1,679 320,580 360,719
Additions 7 - - 1317 1,095 152 - 2,564
Surplus/(defici) on revaluation  Efs R/ (B4 - 4 - - - (85,871) (85,867)
Depreciation piovided duing ~ AEFHE
the year BE (1,395) (94) (1,901) (838) (406) (24,109) (28,743)
Impairment WE (2,226) - (3611) - - - (5,837)
Exchange realignment EiA% (2,296) - (3,204) (#18) (1) - (5,949)
At 31 March 2009, net of RoBENE=A=1-0"
accumulated depreciation ME2ERE
and impairment RiAEFE 6,500 4420 11312 2,661 1,394 210,600 236,887
At 31 March 2009: R-ZENEZR=+-H:
Cost or valuation HAdEE 20,007 4420 37868 12,859 5,879 210,600 291,633
Accumulated depreciation ZENE
and impaiment ke (13,507) - (26,556) (10,198) (4,485) - (54,746)
Net carrying amount BEFE 6,500 4420 11,312 2,661 1,394 210,600 236,887
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEEAT -
At cost oS 20,007 - 37868 12,859 5,879 - 76,613
At 31 March 2009 B-EENE-A
valuation =t-HiHE - 4420 - - - 210,600 215,020
20,007 4420 37,868 12,859 5,879 210,600 291,633
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR ER R EE

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. 9% - MENREE (8)

Group (continued) REE (&)
Longterm ~ Medium-term
leasehold hotel  leasehold office Fumiture,
properties in premises in Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles Cruise ships Total
e (30
REEE Gl i i s
EENE HAEME B KERRA AE L A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr ThAT TEn TEn T Tt
31 March 2008 ZZEN\EZA=1-H
At 31 March 2007 and RZZBLFZA=T-BR
at 1 April 2007: RZZEEMA-A
Cost or valuation HASfEE 25,640 4,290 44095 15581 6,281 344,760 440,647
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE
and impairment RiAE (11510) - (21215) (13,040) (4326) - (50,091)
Net carying amount et 14,130 4290 22,880 2541 1955 344,760 390,556
At 1 Apiil 2007, net of KZETHENA-B-
accumulated depreciation R ZERE
and impairment Rz 56 14,130 4290 22,880 2541 1,955 344,760 390,55
Additions HE - - 1951 1,007 303 1395 4656
Surplus on revaluation EHEER - 307 - - - 10,296 10,603
Depreciation provided duing ~ AEFHE
the year B (1576) (87) (1,976) (o1) (573) (35871) (40784)
Impairment WE (1,460) - (2,440) - - - (3.900)
Exchange realignment ERA% (137) - (244) (25) (6) - (#12)
At 31 March 2008, net of R-SSNEZA=1T-H"
accumulated depreciation ME2ERE
and impairment RAELFE 10,957 4510 20,171 2822 1,679 320,580 360,719
At 31 March 2008: RZFEN\F=R=1-R:
Cost or valugtion RAfEE 25,436 4510 5717 14492 6,553 320580 417288
Accumulated depreciation ZiEnE
and impaiment ke (14479) - (25,546) (11,670) (4.874) - (56,569)
Net carmying amount BEYE 10,957 4510 20,171 2,822 1,679 320,580 360,719
Analysis of cost or valuation: HAREEAN -
At cost B 25,436 - 45717 14492 6,553 - 92,198
At 31 March 2008 E-2Z)\E=R
valuation —+-BRE - 4510 - - - 320,580 325,090
25436 4510 45,17 14,492 6,553 320,580 417288
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group (continued)

The Group's leasehold office premises in Hong Kong
were revalued on 31 March 2009 by Knight Frank
Petty Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, on an open market, existing use basis. A
revaluation surplus of HK$4,000 (2008: HK$307,000)
(note 6) resulting from the valuation has been

credited to the income statement.

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2009 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. A revaluation deficit of
HK$28,901,000 (2008: a surplus of HK$10,296,000)
and HK$56,970,000 (2008: Nil) resulting from
the valuation has been charged to the cruise ship

revaluation reserve and income statement, respectively.

Had these leasehold office premises and cruise
ships been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, their carrying
amounts would have been approximately HK$3,904,000
(2008: HK$4,005,000) and HK$210,600,000 (2008:
HK$282,053,000), respectively.

At 31 March 2009, one of the Group's cruise ships
and the leasehold office premises in Hong Kong
with carrying values of HK$132,600,000 (2008:
HK$197,570,000) and HK$4,420,000 (2008:
HK$4,510,000), respectively, were pledged to secure
loans granted to the Group (notes 21 and 29).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

13.9% - BERRE (&)

AEE (&)
AEEBREEHERLREMER-ZT
TNF=ZA=1+—"HEBIEXES
B EEMBE AT AR A A
BRIBERBEREULAHAMBEETE
& o HEE £ 2 B 1H & #%4,000% T
ZZZE )\ F : 307,000 7T) (&
6) Brt Al ZERA -

AREEBBHR T NF=A
=t HEBIEESERGERD
BE BT E ERT L E R AR A RIRIE
BERAGAAFAMBEEITEM -4
8 & 4 2 = & B3 4628,901,0007% 7T
ZZTT)\F : B#10,296,000/% 7T)
}56,970,000/8 7L (ZEZ )\ F : &)
B 9 Bl 75 BB & = 1 7 B R W e &k P
kR o

MZEREW DAY E KB iHKIR
LR BBRETE RREEIE
PR - AIEECREEBEED D
43,904,000 T (ZEF )\ F :
4,005,0005% JT) &%210,600,000/% 7T
(Z=Z=Z )\ 4 : 282,053,000 70) °

RZTETAF=ZA=+—H8 &%
B EMEE D 5l A132,600,0007% 7T
(ZZ =)\ : 197,570,000 JT)
5 4,420,0008 0 (Z T T )\ F -
4,510,000/ 7T ) 2 H i — 8 &6 i5 [
BEEHERAEWECIEER 1E
RAEEEMERZER(MFE21R
29) °
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31 March 2009

—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE
Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EEAF —EFENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHx FATT
At 1 April WmA—H 753,700 652,370
Additions NE - -
Net profit/(loss) from a fair value NEEEAEZ
adjustment wm A (E18) FE (102,000) 76,430
Exchange realignment M 5 A (27,450) 24,900
At 31 March W=A=+—8H 624,250 753,700
The Group's investment properties AEBAFEHEE
are held under medium-term leases BB ZIREME
and are situated in: IR -
Hong Kong BB 402,400 480,100
Elsewhere E b [R 221,850 273,600
624,250 753,700

The Group's investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2009 by Knight Frank Petty Limited
and Premas Valuers & Property Consultant Pte. Ltd.,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at an
aggregate balance of HK$624,250,000 on an open

market, existing use basis.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 30(a) to the financial

statements.
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15.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEE B ER QA

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Certain of the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$353,500,000 (2008: HK$427,300,000) at 31
March 2009 have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
notes 21 and 29.

The Group's investment property located in Singapore
with a carrying value of HK$221,850,000 (2008:
HK$273,600,000) at 31 March 2009 have been
pledged to secure a mortgage loan advanced from a

fellow subsidiary (note 22).

Further details of the Group’s investment properties

are included on pages 165 to 167.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

14. REYWZE (]R)

AEBR-_ZTTAF=A=+—H
2 BR T 4 18353,500,000/8 7T (=&
T\ : 427,300,000 7T) (L N &
BeETREMEEIEER - HAH
SASEERZBRITEE FBR
PaE21 %29

REEBR-_ZTETNF=A=+—H
Z BR M {E221,850,0008 7L (ZE =
J\E 1 273,600,000 7T) iz 7 #7 hA
W2 EMEDEERT - LIRER
R B AR BN ZIRBE R (M
22) °

AREBREMEE—TFHFBERN
F165BFHE 1678 ©

PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 15. TS b (B

Group

TEE
2009 2008
ZEBhF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April REA—HZEAERE 17,566 18,517
Recognised during the year RAFEHER (836) (902)
Exchange realignment VE 54, 8 2 (899) (49)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZKHEE 15,831 17,566
Current portion mENER (786) (910)
Non-current portion ERENE D 15,045 16,656
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31 March 2009

—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

15.

16.

PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS (continued)

Included above was certain leasehold land with
a carrying value of HK$12,793,000 (2008:
HK$13,123,000) which is held under a medium-term
lease and is situated in Hong Kong and leasehold
land with a carrying value of HK$3,038,000 (2008:
HK$4,443,000) which is held under a long-term lease
and is situated in Indonesia. The Group's prepaid land
premiums with a carrying value of HK$12,793,000
(2008: HK$13,123,000) at 31 March 2009 have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group as further detailed in notes 21 and 29.

15. FE {3 b & (4])

B ERRME 12,793,000 7T (=
T )\ F 13,123,000 7)) B IE
FHAERETMNREEZETHE
B+ i A RAREE3,038,0004
T (ZZE TN\ F : 4,443,000/ 7T)
BRERBEERAALLCLNEDEZHE
Et+ e XEBR_FTZTNF=A
=+ —HBRMHEE®R12,793,000/% T
(ZZZT)\F : 13,123,000 7T) 2
AN EEFEER  ULEREAEE
ERZBTEE FBERWIE21R
29 °

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT R
Group
#EE
2009 2008
—BEAE —TT)\A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
At cost PR AME 42,560 41,000
Provision for impairment B R (42,560) (41,000)
At end of year FaR - -

In prior years, the Group acquired the entire issued
shares of a company which had paid a deposit of
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$42,560,000) to acquire a property
situated in Malaysia. The amount of the deposit paid
was accounted for as the cost of the property under
development, which is stated at cost less any provision
for impairment. In prior years, an impairment provision
against the carrying value of the property under
development of HK$42,560,000 was provided by
the directors of the Company in the light of the then

market conditions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

RBAFE XEBRE —RQA
ZEMBETRG  ZARBE XN
¥ €20,000,0005 % 74 25 Kk & 4%
([FE® 1) (KM% M42,560,000
7o) AIREE—IBERREEME -2
YHRzEEARINABEREFRMEZ
BX 7S - 0 3R AR AR H0 R A {R]ORE B
IR - RNBEFE  ANRAIEEFH
EERMARERRYWEERE
12 542,560,000/ 7T 2 R BB -



16.
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PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued)
The Group has claimed the developer of this property
for the refund of the deposit of RM20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$42,560,000) through
legal proceedings in Malaysia since 2004. Subsequent
to balance sheet date, on 29 April 2009, the Kuala
Lumpur High Court dismissed the appeal made by the
Group by way of summary judgement and the Group
filed the "Notice of Pre-Trial Case Management” at the
High Court for further legal action. The litigation is still

in progress at the date of this report.

Further details of the Group's property under

development are included on page 168.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

16. R AW (F)

BE-_ZTTNFE - AEEEFARN
HRARIREEEFAMZMEZ
% R 79 B 3220,000,00055 ¥ (498 %
42,560,000/ 70) 2 1R B R o &
ERE R-_ZEZTAFHNA=ZTN
B &EEE S AR KB A &R
WA RERRBEZ EF - MASE
EEReEEARRERIEMAIERE
BB ETE —BERTE - AKX
WEBHE - BRAFRDEEITHR -

BERAAEERRIPMEE —FPF
IEENE168H °

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. FRAE M B A 5 R
Company
A FE
2009 2008
—EENEF —TTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JELETR - TAAAE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries R NETE S ] 846,249 733,474

846,250 733,475
Less: Provision for impairment R R E R (327,051) (323,336)

519,199 410,139
Due to subsidiaries FET M B A RIEIE (112,587) (70,592)
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B ¥5 3R R EE

31 March 2009

—ZEERF=A=1+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Amounts
due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of these
amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their

fair values.

The movements in provision for impairment of

amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows:

17. FiiE B~ A= (&)

FEWH B AR RELEEKT 2B
Ko A 485 [E] TE & K HR - IR E B & A
HIAYEEA B RARENRE
B o 5% F RIS BT B~ B SRR
ZHEREEREE QP EERS -

JE W B S X B RRIE 2 R B B B
U

Company
NN

2009 2008
—EE2hEF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
At 1 April RUA—AR 323,336 318,074
Impairment losses recognised B R EE 8 3,715 5,262
327,051 323,336

The above provision for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries represents a provision for individually
impaired receivables. The individually impaired
receivables relate to the Company's subsidiaries that
were in financial difficulty. The Company does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. All amounts due from subsidiaries are not

past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE

31 March 2009

ZZEERF=A=1+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. FTiEMI B A Bl ()
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBERARFHEOET

Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity

incorporation issued attributable Principal

Name and operations share capital to the Group activities
31022 28T rEEENL

=L REEHE B2 EE EREOHL TEXEK

2009 2008

ZBEAF —TT)N\F

New Century Maritime British Virgin US$10,000 60 60 Investment
Limited Islands (“BVI") 10,000%7C holding and
HERZHS securities

([RBRAES]) trading

REERK

HFHEE

Jackston Maritime Limited BVI US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
HERZHS 10,000% 7T investment

B g

Queenston Maritime Limited BVI US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
REBELEHS 10,000 7T investment

B g

Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
FERERRATR BB 28T investment
MERE

Jet Top Development Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Limited BE 28T investment
VEERBERAA MERE
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31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name

=1

Jet Victory Development
Limited
UREREBRAF

New Century Properties

Investments Limited

MELNEREBRAF

Senic Investment Limited

BMREERADF

Wealth International

Development Limited
CHRERERERA A

Wise Century Investments
Limited

EHMRERERAF

P. T. Horizon Bandar

Bahrut/*

P114

Nominal
Place of value of
incorporation issued

and operations share capital

A 8 AR 3L 2®T
KR i B R 2 EE
Hong Kong HK$2
BE 28T

Hong Kong HK$2
BE 28T

Hong Kong HK$2
BB 28T

Hong Kong HK$2
BE 28T

Hong Kong HK$1
BE 18T
Indonesia US$2,200,000
g0Ee 2,200,000% 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

17. Fri6 B~ A= (&)

TEMBAFFBHT - (B)

Percentage
of equity
attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AREEWS
BEEEH EFREK
2009 2008
—EEAE T2 NF
100 100 Property
investment
MERE
100 100 Property
investment
MERE
100 100 Property
investment
NEKRE
100 100 Property
investment
MERE
100 100 Property
investment
MERE
50 50 Hotel operations

BERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place of

incorporation

Name and operations
& 8 B 3L

£ REE
Capplus Investments BVI
Limited HERZHS
ACE Properties Pte. Ltd. Singapore
A3

Nominal
value of
issued

share capital
B#T
BRA& 2 EE

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or any other

member firm of the Ernst & Young Global Network.

*  This joint venture is classified as a subsidiary because

the Group has unilateral control over its board of

directors.

Except for Capplus Investments Limited, all of the

above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=Z/A=+—H

17. FRE B A A= (&)

TEMBAFFBOT - (B)

Percentage
of equity
attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AEEE®S
EZBEI L
2009 2008
—BEANE —ZTN\F

FRER

100 100 Securities trading
60 60 Property
investment

MERE

* BRABYIHFABTBELKEFRMEBSA
st Ernst & Young Global Networkz
R E AL FFEPAERZ ©

R AEEEZAERRZESS
WAEETEED R Bt 28 %
RAEFIEM B A E] -

BrCapplus Investments Limited4h -
NEMMBETEMBARBHARRF
MEZEFAE -

ERIDEERBE AEBAFE
EXEAEAREIGAEEFE
EXrEZHDZ2ARRNRBAR &
ERA W HEMKHE AR 2
BEREGENITE -
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—ETNEFE=A=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 18.FEWWE S - FA{TZhE - &8

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES SN EHMEWEER
Group Company
rEE AAFH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BERAE —ETNE —EENE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET THET FET
Trade receivables JEUE FEER 46,997 60,981 = -
Impairment B (18) (23) - -
46,979 60,958 = _
Prepayments T FRIE 2,418 2,065 625 644
Deposits and other BE REAM
receivables FEUBR R 2,960 32,136 112 86
52,357 95,159 737 730

The Group’s billing terms with customers are mainly
on credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30
days of issuance, except for certain well-established
customers, where the terms are extended to 90 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR |5

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 18.FEWE SR - FA{TEIE -~ 1%
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES e REMEBEUBRTR (&)

(continued)
T REWKRE SERDBRBMBER -
impairment, based on the invoice date, which is the WBIEEERE (BARERSE 2 HEH)

Below is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

date when the services are rendered.

ZBRER AT ©

Group

AEME
2009 2008
—EZBAE —EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THETT
Within 1 month —fEAR 35,452 30,464
1 to 2 months —ZE=Mm1EA 8,355 16,911
2 to 3 months Mz =& A 886 12,935
Over 3 months B =& A 2,286 648
Trade receivables FEWE S ERN 46,979 60,958

The movements in the provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

EWE SRR ZBEREZSIT

Group
EE
2009 2008
—ZEZEhF —ZEENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 April R A—H 23 26
Exchange difference bE X E R (5) 3)
18 23
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—ETNEFE=A=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 18.FEWWE S - FA{TZhE -~ &8

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade
receivables represents a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in
financial difficulty. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

TR EAMEWERR ()

VA b & Us R SRORL (B B 8 R 3K 13RI RR
TE 2 & W AR SROR 1B B 8 o M Bl R E
2 JE W R FRORE 1R 1R IR B BE X B %
RNEEZEP AKBEXWERZEFHS
BEFAEMAERBIEMEREE
) o

RBEZEWE ZERR 2 REE D
U

Group

TEH
2009 2008
—EE2hEF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired REEIIRARVERIE 17,422 7,985
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —EA 23,340 32,143
1 to 3 months past due MH—Z=={4 A 4,775 19,818
Over 3 months past due BHEBE=1EA 1,442 1,012
46,979 60,958
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SR | AT

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 18. EWWE SES +- A ZE - 1%

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES EREMEWERR (&)
(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired 7R %80 B IR R VE R (B 2 FE WBR Bk U B
relate to a large number of diversified customers for BEEERH REEOHILER
whom there was no recent history of default. RRIEFCEE ©

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate 80 BB 2K 1B AL B 2 JE Y AR 3R BE 21
to a number of independent customers that have HEAEEFRIFEELHE B L
a good track record with the Group. Based on past BEEAHE BEBALR  AARE
experience, the directors of the Company are of the ERAE BHRZEERRZEEE =
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary W E RSB A RIWAR R IKARE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a KO WHBARZEERIED
significant change in credit quality and the balances BERE AEBFEAEERERZ
are still considered fully recoverable. The main type HimEZHENARMEPKERF
of collateral held by the Group as security is rental B8 £22,190,000F T (ZZEZE )\ :
deposits received from tenants with fair value of 58,430,000/ L) 2 ek E -

HK$22,190,000 (2008: HK$58,430,000).

None of the prepayments, deposits and other FETFRIE - RS K& H it fE W R SR
receivables is either past due or impaired and there mEaHRE BEERPIEATE
was no recent history of default among the customers. /R RIE 40 8% o

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. & BIESXIRAFTEEIE>

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS REKRE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THTT
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, &/& _EMARERE -
at market value ZmiE 207,395 31,571
The above equity investments were classified as held RZZEZNAFRZZEZENF=HA
for trading at 31 March 2009 and 2008. =t+—H FlKRERETDSBEAR
FHIEEH -
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—ETNEFE=A=+—H

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. & BIEXRAFTEHEIE>

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

At 31 March 2009, the Group's equity
investments amounting to HK$46,526,000 (2008:
HK$31,571,000) were pledged to secure margin
account facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group's equity
investments remained unchanged, the market value of
the Group's equity investments at the date of approval
of these financial statements was approximately
HK$315,209,000.

BRERE (&)
R-_ZETZNF=ZA=Z+—HB &%
5 #46,526,0008 0 (Z T Z )\
#F : 31,571,000 7T) 2 RIERERD
EHE LIS R FAEBR ZIRE
RPEE (M5F29) -

BRAEBEBORERELHEHESIFTT
BoAEBHMRELERTERE
#EZ B MEL A315,209,0007%8
7T|:o

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 20. & KRB £ EYW KRS K H

DEPOSIT 7=
Group Company
rEE NS
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE —ZT)\E ZBEhE C"TTN\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TR FAET TR TAET
Cash and bank balances Be RBITET 108,032 5,905 47938 428
Time deposits EHER 185,557 376,565 149,306 276,624
293,589 382,470 197,244 277052
Less: Pledged time deposit for i : FLIEITEHE KA
a bank loan ZTEHER 21 (17,550) (17.550) - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeLREEEY 276,039 364,920 197,244 277,052

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and nine months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances, time deposits and a pledged deposit are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=RA=+—H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 21.:5TB8R{TE R
Group
A&H
2009 2008
ZBENE It 2942
Effective interest rate Maturity ~ HK$'000 Effective interest rate Maturity  HK$'000
L1 TIES %R THE:x RN AR TiEx
Current ok )
Bank loans, secured FITER (FER) Hong Kong Hong Kong
Prime rate - 2.7% p.a. to Prime rate - 3% pa. fo
Hong Kong Singapore Cost of fund
Prime rate - 1.625% p.a. 2010 26,577 + 1.75% pa. 2009 31,898
& A
REERE-2TEEFE REENE-IEFR
B R
BESNZE-165EFE ZT-BF EERA+1SEEE —EENF
Non-current 30k )
Bank loans, secured RITER (FER) Hong Kong Hong Kong
Prime rate - 2.7% p.a. to Prime rate - 3% pa. to
Hong Kong Singapore Cost of fund
Prime rate - 1.625% pa. 2010 - 2017 70,544 +1.75% pa. 2009 - 2017 97,094
i B
BREENZE-27EFE BEENE-IEFE
EFE -ET-34E B —EEnEE
BEERAZ-165EF8 -F-tf BEMAYITEEE T
97,121 128,992
Analysed into: LUITE
Bank loans repayable: R THRER
ZETER
Within one year or —ER
on demand EEX 26,571 31,898
In the second year FoE 9,545 26,706
In the third to fift £-Z210%
years, inclusive (BEEEMF) 36,060 39,203
Beyond the fifth year ENFR 24,939 31,185
97121 128,992
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21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

0

(i)

(iii)

(V)

W)

(vi)

mortgages over the Group's leasehold office
premises together with its investment properties
and prepaid land premiums which had an
aggregate carrying value at the balance sheet
date of approximately HK$370,713,000 (2008:
HK$444,933,000) (notes 13, 14 and 15);

a pledge of the Group's time deposit amounting
to US$2,250,000 (equivalent to HK$17,550,000)
(note 20);

a first priority Tuvaluan statutory mortgage
over one of the Group’s cruise ships with a
carrying value at the balance sheet date of
HK$132,600,000 (2008: HK$197,570,000) (note
13);

assignments of charter proceeds, earnings and
insurance relating to one of the Group's cruise

ships;

corporate guarantees up to HK$210,340,000
(2008: HK$210,340,000) provided by the

Company; and

unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantees
executed by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng to
the extent of US$9,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$70,200,000). Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
is one of the discretionary beneficiaries and the
settlor of a discretionary trust which wholly owns
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the Company's

ultimate holding company.

21. 5 BB TERK (E)
AREEMETFRTERUTHSEME
A

() AEBZHERAREYWEER
HIEEMERFEMHE Z &
B REER ZZTEECZRR
M 1B 4 £370,713,000% 7T (=
T T )\ F 1 444,933,000/ JT)
(MI5E13 ~ 14%15)

(i) % Bz F 817 72,250,000
7t (#2174 17,550,00058 7T) 2
A (M 5E20) s

(i X"EBEBREEBZ2EEEAR
132,600,000 T (ZZEZEN
4 : 197,570,000/ 7T) 2 Hdh —
HmcBERESE —BEETE
i (M EE13)

(v)y AEBHEP — & H 2 HEMR
F3E - B LR 2 EE

V) ARRIHEZRAEREZ
210,340,000/ Tt (ZZE=E N
F 210,340,000 7T) + K&

(Vi) =B EFTIRE 2 EBEN
KA #8218 A 1R 8 &
% 3#9,000,000% 7t (FHE R
70,200,000/ JT) ° &= i3 B 5 &
BEERBARRNRZ&EIER
‘A AlHuang Group (BVI) Limited
Z—EE2EEFEIAEP —UDE
EEZmARKETA
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22.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Except for the secured bank loan of HK$17,550,000
(2008: HK$40,950,000) which is denominated
in United States dollars, all other bank loans are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All bank loans bear

interest at floating interest rates.

The carrying values of the Group’s bank loans
approximate to their fair values. The fair values of
bank loans have been calculated by discounting the

expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group could not
meet the relevant debt covenants of a bank loan of
HK$17,550,000 in relation to the requirements on
fair value of a cruise ship and the net worth of the
subsidiary which entered into the loan agreement.
The bank loan was accordingly classified as a current
liability on the balance sheet. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, such debt covenants had been
relinquished upon full settlement of the related loan.
There was no breach of covenants as at the date of

this report.

MORTGAGE LOAN ADVANCED FROM A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

The mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary
bears interest at 4.25% per annum for the first year,
4.75% per annum for the second year, and 0.5% per
annum above the commercial financing rate quoted
by United Overseas Bank Limited for the third year
and thereafter. The loan denominated in Singapore
dollars is repayable by 180 monthly instalments. The
mortgage loan was secured by the Group’s investment
property with a carrying amount of HK$221,850,000
(2008: HK$273,600,000) at 31 March 2009. The
carrying amount of the mortgage loan advanced from

a fellow subsidiary approximates to its fair value.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

22.

B ¥R R M EE
31 March 2009
—ETNEFE=RA=+—H
S EBITE K (&)

Br A R 17 B 317,550,000 7T
(ZZZ )\ : 40,950,000/ ) Jb
WETLRAGEEEMIN B EMIR
TERDUABTRAGEESEN - A

RITEFIIRZBH R XRFHE -

AEEZRTERZEREZELR
FEEHEE -RTERZAFEE
TiBE BRI R R PrIR AR KIR

TREMEAHE -

REER  NEBREFSRTE
17,550,000/ 7T & 8 # s~ F B
BRIIVERBHEZHNBRAATNE
EFENRENEBERRES -
- EEEBEBERA RITEFRD
SERABAEAGBE -REERE &
FHEEBWRENE  BREEEZ
HEKEME - RNARSTBHATEE
fR 25 -

BREAKNBARRBRMNZZEE
BX

ARERMBARBRNZRIBEERNE
—FREBA2EBFENE -RE
ZFRFRBATSEFERNE MR
FZFRHEBIZKRERITER QA
Frasm (& M R F RO0S5EFHE
FlE - ZERUAFME THEE I
ED180ME AR EREEIE - ZIKIBE
HUARZ—ZZTEZEAF=A=+—HZ
BF M (B A221,850,0008 T (ZFF
J\E : 273,600,000/ 7T) 2~ A~ & H
KEMEEER - REMBLATR
NrziRBEXREAERAATEE
ME -
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22. MORTGAGE LOAN ADVANCED FROM AFELLOW 22. B Z M B & 8 & F <2 & 18
SUBSIDIARY (continued) B (8)
Group
TEE
2009 2008
—E2hF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Analysed into: AR
Mortgage loan repayable: BRATFHRERZRBER
Within one year or on demand —FAYEER 3,305 3,553
In the second year BEF 3,474 3,693
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZENT (BREERMTF) 11,524 12,253
Beyond the fifth year FREFR 37,612 46,547
55,915 66,046
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23. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, OTHER

PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The aged analysis below shows the Group’s trade

payables, based on goods receipt date and the date

when services are rendered.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.BNEZRM

BAF5 R R MIE
31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

BErRE - H

fEEMSERRKE RS

UTRAKRBEZRERNESERFRBE
mm Y ER B OHA R AR A5 R 4 A B T 2
AREC DT ©

Group Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BENE —ZEENF —BENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT FTHET TAT
Trade payables: ERESERX :
Current to 180 days ETHZ=180H 2,269 3,120 - -
Over 180 days Bi@180H 11,254 17,632 - -
13,523 20,752 - -
Accruals JEAT TR 17,720 2,690 1,464 2,049
Other payables and H A TR R
deposits received Bz e 26,387 58,430 = -
57,630 81,872 1,464 2,049

Deposits received of HK$9,064,000 (2008:
HK$7,562,000) were included as a non-current liability.

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing

and are normally settled on 90-day terms.
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31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

4. REFIBEE BE
EEMBEGBEREAENREN &

during the year are as follows: AN
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Group 2009
biN- | —EENF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation of
depreciation properties Total
WESBE
SRERNITE MEE R wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FTHERT
At 1 April 2008 R-EEN\EMA—H 2,142 36,670 38,812
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRERA
to the income statement me/ GrA) 2z
during the year (note 9) TRIEFIE (F3E9) 1,435 (14,354) (12,919)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZBEThF=RA=+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZEEHIARBELERE 3,577 22,316 25,893
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE
Group 2009
b | —EENF
Losses available
for offsetting against
future taxable profits
AR 85 R 3R
FERBRFI 2 BB
HK$'000
TET
At 1 April 2008 RZZZENFHA—H (4,739)
Deferred tax credited to the income FAFARERZ
statement during the year (note 9) B IE (M359) (12,204)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEZNF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZERRIBEERE (16,943)
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31 March 2009

ZZEERF=A=1+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 . EEFIBEE &1 (&)

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
Group 2008
REE —TENF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related  Revaluation of
depreciation properties Total
HERTE
ZIREBNTE MEERL #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FET
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFHA—H 1,478 37,254 38,732
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRlkERA
to the income statement me/ (Gt A) 2
during the year (note 9) EEFTE (P 7E9) 664 (699) (35)
Exchange difference PEH =5 - 115 115
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEENF=ZA=+—H
at 31 March 2008 ZBRERIBREER 2,142 36,670 38,812
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Group 2008
REE —TENF
Losses available
for offsetting against
future taxable profits
AIHHR SR 2R
JERBOR N 2 B8
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2007 RZET+FTOA—H (2,710)
Deferred tax credited to the income FAFERERZ
statement during the year (note 9) EIETA (P EE9) (2,029)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEZENF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2008 ZEEHEEERE (4,739)
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—ETNEFE=A=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)
For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

24 EEBIREE B E (H)
RRAUBEABERMS - & TEL
RELSERABE TEME - UTH
SIVERE B R SR AR 2 A R BIR T B
A

2009 2008
—EENF —EEZNEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in REFEEERBRER

the consolidated balance sheet IRIEFIE & B 58 11,193 276

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in  RirEEEBBERERZ
the consolidated balance sheet RIETIEB EFHE (20,143) (34,349)
(8,950) (34,073)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and Indonesia of HK$263,015,547 (2008:
HK$190,582,204) and HK$21,792,982 (2008:
HK$30,897,471), respectively. The Company has
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$154,399,773
(2008: HK$151,053,737). The tax losses in Hong
Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The tax losses in Indonesia can be
carried forward for a maximum period of ten years.
Deferred tax assets of HK$28,633,558 have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these
tax losses have arisen in companies that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the tax loses can be utilised.

REEBRBEERONEDREEFE
E518263,015,5478 L (ZE TN
F 1 190,582,204/8 7T ) &21,792,982
B (ZFZF/)\F 30,897,471
TC) c AARRIRBAEEZMIBEE
154,399,773 L (ZEZT )\ F :
151,053,7378 ) - REBEABEALZ
MIEBEERAAEEEESES
B2 AEZ KRR ERE & T o 7 ED
FEAZHMEEE&KZAA&E T
F o REBW KRB ZZEHIEE B ®E
AR E 7 18 & E28,633,5587%8 T ¢
AZEREBEDIREEEE R
Rz RA - AR R TR E &
FERRBm FIA K S Z SR IEE 18 -
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31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 . EEFIBEE &1 (&)

At 31 March 2009, there was no significant RZEBEZANF=ZA=+—H &%
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2008: Nil) for tax BHEARWERREHEF MmAE
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of TR ZBIBHREMERRERE
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability EFREEERE(ZZEZENF &) -
to additional tax should such amounts be remitted. 3% ERIAE L - ANE B &EEI
HMIERIE -

There are no income tax consequences attaching XN B A AR ORI B B
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its RIS R o

shareholders.

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. g 7&K
Shares BR 13
Group and Company
AEBRAEAF
2009 2008
—EENF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Authorised: JEERRAN
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares 40,000,000,000%
of HK$0.0025 each FAKMEE0.00258 7T
(2008: 40,000,000,000 ZEBR(ZEZENE
ordinary shares of 40,000,000,000 4% &A%
HK$0.0025 each) H{E0.0025% 7T 2 HiBix) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREERAE
5,765,288,705 ordinary shares 5,765,288,705%
of HK$0.0025 each FAKMEE0.00258 7T
(2008: 5,490,751,148 ZEBR(ZEENEFE
ordinary shares of 5,490,751,148R &%
HK$0.0025 each) H180.0025% 7T 2 EiBix) 14,414 13,728
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—ETNEFE=A=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 2
September 2008, a bonus issue was made to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register
on the record date, 2 September 2008, representing
5,490,751,148 shares in total, on the basis of one
new share, credited as fully paid, for every twenty
shares held on the record date, resulting in the issue
of 274,537,557 shares of HK$0.0025 each, ranking
pari passu in all respects with the existing share capital
of the Company. Further details of the bonus issue
were included in the Company’s circular dated 8
August 2008.
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BT —RARY AR R 2R
- BB EF17274,537,5570% B IR T
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ZZEERF=A=1+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 25. IR A (48)
A summary of the transactions during the year with FRXN - BEARRADBITRAR Lt
reference to the above movements in the Company's B SWmT

issued share capital is as follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROBE ESRTRE ROZER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTAT TAT
At 1 April 2007 RZEZ+FNA—-H 1,209,687,787 12,098 190,549 202,647
Share options exercised before ~ —ZZ+F+A+=HR
13 July 2007 (date of (R FEBH) Al
share subdivision) 170 2 R 23,000,000 230 20,510 20,740
Top-up subscription FERIMRN 728 120,000,000 1,200 136,800 138,000
Share issue expenses RIHETRAX - - (4,435) (4,435)
1,352,687,787 13,528 343,424 356,952
Share subdivision RS 4,058,063,361 - - -
Share options exercised after ZZTEELATER
13 July 2007 (date of (R FEBH) %
share subdivision) 1702 R 80,000,000 200 9,206 9,406
At 31 March 2008 and R-ZEN\F
1 April 2008 ZA=t-BEk
“ZZ\FMWA—H 5,490,751,148 13,728 352,630 366,358
Bonus issue BITALIR 274,537,557 686 (686) -
At 31 March 2009 R-TENEF
=A=+-H 5,765,288,705 14,414 351,944 366,358
Share options i8R R
Details of the Company's share option scheme are BEARAR ZBRESTE ZFEH
included in note 26 to the financial statements. PR B 75 ¥R 3R BT 5226 ©
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. BB RESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a) Participants

Participants are any directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company and employees of the Group and any
advisors (professional or otherwise), consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers
of any member of the Group who the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed to the
Group or any shareholders of the Group (the
“Grantee”).

(b) Subscription price
The Subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event
shall not be less than the greatest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as
stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant
of an option (the “Date of Grant");

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant;
and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. B IR HESHE (F)

(c) Maximum number of shares (©)
The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% in nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Company on the
adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). Options which lapse in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

Scheme Mandate Limit.

(d) Maximum number of options granted to (d)

each participant

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
options that may be granted to a specifically
identified single Grantee under this Scheme within
any 12-month period shall not (when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit").

(e) Period of exercise of options (e)
An option may be exercised in a period notified
by the Board to each Grantee at the time of
making an offer, which shall not expire later than

10 years from the Date of Grant.

(f) Remaining life of the Scheme ®
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date, 23

September 2002, unless otherwise cancelled or

B 43 £ BR

Rz AR B 2 B
AFTERTZIRNDEZTEEG
REMZEBERARAE %
TR A E B 2 10% ([ 8l &% #
PREE]) - st HFHEIIXERERRT -
I A AR R 5% &5 8 5 KKK
2 FE R -

E2HEERBREZLR

AR+ =& A HRE - Ef4E
EE—ABRAERREZTE A
RRERZBREZERREAR
AEMEMBRESSERZ
BREmMERT RN AR
RZTAEEEBRITRM Z21%
(MEABREE]) -

B IR 2 1T

FER A A NI 2 R BB AR B
EXCHNEEARAZHEA
T8 AR R B B +
FAREm -

= a2 T &k F 1

ZAEENEAEH T -
FAA-Z+t=HRF+FRNE
W BRBITEHBIEERTAS

amended. B Rl e
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BRI B T HFAEAEDIRRKR
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BREBRRERGREZER -
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31 March 2009
—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H
26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under

iﬁq

BREFBOT

: Eﬁﬂx%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬂiﬁ@iz

2009 2008
ZERNE —ZENF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
MELHTER BRES A METHTRE BRI E
HK$ per share '000 HKS per share '000
gRER T BEET T
At 1 April NEA—H 0.28 148,800 0.509 43,000
Granted during the year ERFT - - 1.12 37200
Exercised during 1 April RZZZ+EMA-H
2007 to 13 July 2007 E_ZRLELA
(date of share TR (R4
subdivision) BE) BETE - - 0.71 (23,000)
Lapsed during 1 April RZZEN\EMA-A
2008 to 2 September EITEN\E
2008 (date of bonus NAZR (BTHk
Issue) AE)BEAM 0.28 (1,200) - -
0.28 147,600 0.826 57,200
Effect of share subdivision ROl 52 - - - 171,600
Effect of bonus issue 17 %IH&Z% g - 7380 - -
Exercised during 13 July RZZE+ELAT=H
2007 (date of share (Hfﬂ RAAE)
subdivision) to EZZTNE=AR
31 March 2009 =+-RERGE - - 0.07 (80,000)
Lapsed during RZZZ\ENAZH
2 September 2008 (BITARBH)
(date of bonus EIRENE
issue) to “A=+-H
31 March 2009 HRERM 0.2667 (15,750) - -
At 31 March R=A=1-H 0.2667 139,230 0.28 148,800

The weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise for share options exercised in the prior year

was HK$0.2169.
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—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. BBIRESE (8)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REEH  mARTEIBERE T
options outstanding as at the balance sheet date are EERITERAT :
as follows:
2009
ZEBHhF
Number of options Exercise price** Exercise period
BRERE TREE 1THEH
‘000 HK$ per share
¥ BRET
139,230 0.2667 27-04-07 to 26-04-12

—EZLFENA=Z+LRE
—E-"“FMAZ=1+H

2008
—EENF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
fEkES A TTE(E* 171 85
‘000 HK$ per share
T BT
148,800 0.28 27-04-07 to 26-04-12
ZTEEEFMA-tTEHE
bk SoutpS s AN

*  The exercise prices and the numbers of the relevant O BEAmMKRITEBREZITEERE
outstanding share options have been adjusted as a result EEMBROFAELFE - ZFH
of share subdivision. Further details of these adjustments BI2E-—FTHBHRARRABHR
are included in the Company’'s announcement dated 16 ZEEHFELA+TRBZRE -

July 2007.

**  The exercise prices and the numbers of the relevant OB BEEMRITEBRE ZITEERE
outstanding share options have been adjusted as a result EEMBETAKRELDFE - ZFH
of bonus issue. Further details of these adjustments BI2E-—FTHBHRARRABHR
are included in the Company's announcement dated 8 ZEENFRAANBZAE -

September 2008.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

26. BIRAEST B (&)

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

In prior year, the fair value of the share options

granted was approximately HK$10,504,000.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
in the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using the binomial model, taking into account the

terms and conditions upon which the options were

RTREREFZHRITEZEBR
R A B B A o

RNEF BREZEREZAFED
/10,504,000 JT °

REFROHZAREEEBREZ
AFEBEDIREHASER —BERX
HEETERALERRLBEREZ
iR TR R AR AR ST o T RBIIEME

granted. The following table lists the inputs to the EF T A 2 B H -
model used:
2008
—ETNGF
Dividend yield (%) K S 2 (%) 4.000
Expected volatility (%) T8 B 1@ (%) 39.000
Historical volatility (%) JE 52K & (%) 39.000
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 2 (%) 4.114
Expected life of options (year) fE M HE 2 TEERGFHA (5F) 5.000

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥Ttt &2 SEEE B ER QA

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
139,230,000 share options outstanding under the
share option scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of additional 139,230,000 ordinary shares of the
Company together with the increase in the share
capital of HK$348,000 and share premium of
HK$42,836,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 15 April
2009, 1,470,000 share options granted to employees
with an exercise price of HK$0.2667 per share lapsed.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 137,760,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.39% of the Company's shares in issue

as at that date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 50 to 51 of the

financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26.

27.

B 75 R =M EE
31 March 2009
—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H
BRESE (E)
REEH RBREBRESE K2
A1 H139,230,00017 fE A% # & R 17
- ERXRNBBRARRERET &
BT M ARATEE < IR A B B3
TR HMN139,230,0000% A~ A 7 E i@
% - & [E 38 0 A% 7K348,000/% 7T & &
175 842,836,000 7T (R 31T
) °

HEHB R_ZETZTAFEWMAT+H
H BTFEEmMITFEEAESK0.2667
7B T HI1,470,00017 B A% A2 2 5K -

RN B R R HELE B B - AR IR 5% AT
| - AR FHF 137,760,000 B A% #
MARITE  WEARARZBEZE
BEATHR1D #92.39% o

&1

(a) =&H
AEBZHEEBERERNAFEE
EBAFFE2HEEZEDHRUH
HEKFES0EFSIBEZIHRAERE
R EHHEKZT -
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27. RESERVES (continued)

27. #E (&)

(b) Company (b) X H
Share Share Proposed
premium option Contributed ~ Retained final
account reserve surplus profits  dividend Total
B2
ROEER BRERE B8RSR REER  RERE CE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEL TAL TEL TEL TiEn TiEn
At 1 April 2007 RZZRHEMA-H 190,549 4542 162,587 83,244 27054 467976
Loss for the year TEREE 10 - - - (2,448) - (2,448)
Final 2007 dvidend  BERZ-EE+F
declared RERE - - - - (27054)  (27,054)
Fquitysetfled share  IATRERE 2
option arrangements  BRERH 2% - 10,504 - - - 10,504
Issue of shares BRH 25 166,516 (8,246) - - - 158,270
Share issue expenses  E1TR (AT 25 (4,435) - - - - (4,435)
At31 March 2008 and  R-EFNF=A=1—H
at 1 April 2008 RRZEZN\ERA-H 352,630 6,600 162,587 80,796 - 602,813
Loss for the year rEEER 10 - - - (12,247) - (12247)
Bonus issue BITHR 25 (686) - - - - (686)
Share option lapsed ~ RERXHZ
during the year B - (743) - 743 - -
Proposed final 2009  —ETNEEF
dividend RERE 1 - - - (20179) 20179 -
At31 March2009  R-FEAF=A=1-H 351,944 6057 162,587 49,113 20179 589,880
The contributed surplus of the Group arose from: REB 2 EHRBMRKR -

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued under the
Group's reorganisation, and the nominal value
of the shares and share premium of the former

holding company acquired by the Group;
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RESERVES (continued)

(i) a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 27(b)(i)
above, representing the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
under the Group's reorganisation and the then
consolidated net asset value of the acquired
subsidiaries; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances
prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted but are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or lapsed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$210,340,000 (2008:
HK$210,340,000) given to banks to secure general
credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount
of HK$79,571,000 (2008: HK$88,041,000) had
been utilised by these subsidiaries in respect of the
guarantees as at the balance sheet date.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank and margin facilities and
the mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary,
which are secured by the assets of the Group, are
included in notes 13, 14, 15, 19 and 20, respectively,
to the financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29.

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

e (8R)

(i) RE-NANERNRAZBETT
Z B ARE M B K E KT
B

RARZEHRBRKE -

() EXBEE27(b)O)FTH 2 EHE R
RRABRBAEEEHPTET
B EEREEENEARE
RZmAEEEFBEZIEZR &

(i) WME-NANEFEARNAZBETT
ZBEARE A B K7 E KT
i

REFE—NN—FBREQRE(ER]
) ERZOEDIESAGT 2 E T 15
AR ARARBZ2EFAKADIKT
BCER o

BEREREEECREMBFITE
ZHEBREZAFEE FBRYB
MR E2AABRD N R ZR B Z2E
FTRERE—THRE - ZE 6B BRE
WITER  ARRERSEREZR
1748 (8 Bk - 2k fisi B A B A & T =X
KE - BB BARBEGERERE
o Al o

KRB E

REEH  AQRIGKTIRITZARE
BYERE A210,340,0008 T (=
T T )\ 4F 210,340,000 ) © 1E
BAEEETHE QR TER—
BMEEBREZEB -NEEH  Z
EMBRAAMZEERECHAE
79,571,000 T (= Z )\ 4F
88,041,000/ ) 22 ERE -

EEEHE
BEAASEERTEARBSEELRA
EZWB AR ZIRBER (B X
SEEEERM 2B RERT B
HAMIFEIZ - 14~ 15~ 19K 20 °
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31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=A=+—H

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. 8&EHELH

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its cruise ships (note 13) and
investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for

terms ranging from one week to three years.

At 31 March 2009 and 2008, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its charterers

and tenants falling due as follows:

(a) AHBEAHH

AEBEREEKEHELHEE
H#tm (ME13) RIREMEE (M
FE14) c mAEmZEEN F —(E

R-ZZEZNFR _ZETNF=
A=+—R AEEREHEME
R A KM F RSz A A] f#EH &
EHEAR TIFHRNERZ

>

REZEESRIBAENT :

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Within one year —F R 39,560 54,237
In the second to fifth years, EEERNF
inclusive (BREREMF) 35,512 40,086
75,072 94,323
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)  30. & % 0 & 2 8k (48)

(b) As lessee (b)

The Group leases certain of its commercial
properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two

to three years.

At 31 March 2009 and 2008, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

LA A & 5
AEERELEHELHEE
HETHA®ME memzHl
AN F _FE=F-

R-ZZEZNFR_ZTNF=
A=+t—8 AXKEEREFA
BEERZHEAR TIFHA
XMZRREEESRIBALRR
LUNN.

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EBEBhEF —ZTENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Within one year —FR 183 147
In the second to fifth years, EEERNF
inclusive (BREEREME) 143 182
326 329
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@

3. BEBREALTRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial BRAFBHREREMBOSERE
statements, the Group had the following material S FRNAREEREHEALZE
transactions with related parties during the year: RZSWAT -

Related party transactions in connection with the () BAREBEBEB 2BREA

Group's operations: TR5 -

2009 2008
—E2hEF —ETNEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FTHERT FET
Rental income received BRI R E AR Z
from a fellow subsidiary & U A 0) 240 240
Interest expenses paid to EfIRIRZWEB AR Z
a fellow subsidiary ) BB (i) 2,968 2,846

Notes: K7t

() Rental income was charged based on a tenancy () MHEEWARAEEERRMHB
agreement entered between the Group and RNABIRT S 2 & W
a fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental rate of A& A&20,000% 7T °
HK$20,000.

(i) Interest expenses were paid for the mortgage loan () FAERIZTIERRZMNBARR
advanced by a fellow subsidiary at annual interest RZEBERMEZMN  AFE
rates range from 4.75% to 5% (2008: 4.75%) for ZFERMEK B475EESE (ZF
the year. TN\ 475) °

Other related party transactions (b) EthBEBEEALRS

(®)

Personal guarantee given by a related party

At the balance sheet date, one of the Group’s
bank loans is secured by an unconditional and
irrevocable personal guarantee executed by
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng to the extent of
US$9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$70,200,000).
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the
discretionary beneficiaries and the settlor of a
discretionary trust which wholly owns Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, the Company’s ultimate

holding company.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Waiver from a related company on long
outstanding trade payables

Due to foreign currency controls in Indonesia, the
Group, through a related company, purchased
daily consumables and made payments to
vendors abroad in the past few years. Since some
of the daily consumables were of defective items
or not delivered on time, the Group made claims
against the vendors of HK$1,242,000 (2008: Nil)
during the year.

Balance with a related company

As disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet,
the Group had an outstanding balance due to
a related company of HK$1,004,000 (2008:
an amount due from a related company of
HK$345,000) which arose from the purchase
of daily consumables on behalf of the Group.
This balance is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed terms of repayment. Particulars of the
amount due from a related company, disclosed
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Name of the related company

BEAREME

Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

3.EBEALRS (K)

©

(d)

—HEERAHRRRBAHMKE
ENEMNEZEZER

AP EEF  EREEMINE
B AXEEBBEBAERA
BEARHERELERMEBNE
FRR - BREH BEHERESD
RBREZBBHTERRZNMN A
b RAFERN AEEHER
21,242,000 L (ZZEZEN
Fm|m) o

BLH RAE N R 2 R

B EEEABEREBEE K
SEMEBEAEBEBEHTEER
o AE AT BEE R R RIEZ KB
1} 4 # /1,004,000 %ﬁ(:
TETENEF: }WWE@AT
345,000/ JL) ° —%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ

VR ﬁ'a%&?ﬁlmﬁ%‘iﬁﬂ °
fE W R E R R RIA ZHFBIRIE

B R AEDIFE161BIK B 5 40
T

Maximum

amount
31 March outstanding 31 March
2009  during the year 2008
—EEAF FRREM “TENF
=H=+-H BEEH =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET FET
(1,004) 345 345
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Balance with a related company (continued)

(e)

The related company is beneficially owned by

certain close family members of certain directors
(Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng)

of the Company.

Loans advanced from minority shareholders of the

3I.EMEALRS (E)

(d) BERERRZERR(E)
ZBEBEQARIIBAARARASE
TEEF(ERRELE FHE
Tt mEHRELE EFEWRRLT
FEMELXL) 2 ETEREREB
BExlEA -

(e) AEBEMBARZHBEER

Group's subsidiaries 2z ER
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
&t FET TFAT
First loan HEEX 0) 43,984 49,158
Second loan REER (i) 131,823 131,823
Third loan E=FEXN i) 46,920 52,440
222,727 233,421

Notes: K&t -

() With respect to the first loan, pursuant to the () REZ2EXRME  RBREAXAEH

shareholders' agreement entered into between the
Group and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
the minority shareholder agreed not to demand
repayment of the loan until the subsidiary has the
ability to do so and prior consent was obtained
from the Group. In addition, if the paid up share
capital of the subsidiary and the shareholders’
loans shall be insufficient to meet the operating
expenses, the minority shareholder and the Group
agree to either apply for allotment of shares from
the subsidiary or provide shareholders’ loan in
proportion to their respective shareholding in the
subsidiary. The minority shareholder is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. The loan is unsecured

and interest-free.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Loans advanced from minority shareholders of the
Group's subsidiaries (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i) With respect to the second loan, pursuant to a
shareholders’ agreement entered into between the
Group and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
the shareholder shall not demand repayment of
this loan unless a resolution in writing signed by
all shareholders of the Group for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. In the opinion of the directors, after
confirming with the minority shareholder, there
was no intention for the minority shareholder
to demand the Group to repay this loan in the
next twelve months from the balance sheet date.
Accordingly, the second loan was classified as a
non-current liability. The minority shareholder is
a fellow subsidiary of the Company. The loan is
unsecured and interest-free.

(iii) With respect to the third loan, the minority
shareholders of a subsidiary, who granted the
third loan to the Group’s subsidiary include (1)
a director of the Company; (2) a close family
member of the Company's directors; and (3) a
company beneficially owned by the Company's
directors and their close family members. In the
opinion of the directors, after confirming with the
minority shareholders, there was no intention for
the minority shareholders to demand the Group for
repayment of this loan in the next twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the third
loan was classified as a non-current liability and is
unsecured and interest-free.

(f) The mortgage loan advanced from a fellow
subsidiary bears interest at 4.25% per annum for
the first year, 4.75% per annum for the second
year, and 0.5% per annum above the commercial
financing rate quoted by United Overseas Bank
Limited for the third year and thereafter. The
mortgage loan is secured by a legal mortgage on
the Group's investment property with a carrying
amount of HK$221,850,000 as at the balance
sheet date.

(g) The compensation of key management personnel
of the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a).

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
to (f) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H
3N.EBEEALRS ()

() AEBEMBRARZLHIRRR
N2 ER(E)
Hist - ()

(i) MRXEERME  RBREAEHE
BB ARz — R DERK
REILZ2BREHZ  BRIERSE
E2ERRFEEERERZE
}?%**’@‘Eb%ﬂx%j(ﬁiﬂi_ﬁ
CHABRRTEEREE
H?IE\E\, cEERAKLHZ
HLHRRIELERE - %5
LERREZERKRNEERE
ERHEARKIEANEEREZ
EER - AL ZXEER
DERIERDAEAB -ZBLHE
BRERAARRBZRRZMEAT -
ERAEEBERRE -

(i) BYFAEBNBARE =28
Kz —HHBARZ V&M E
BEWARAIZ—FES (2)
AKRRIEBCZEREBE  &(3)
KRB EFERES ZE?%%J*

B Z AR EFR

i 5% D %{Hx%f’ﬁﬁﬁﬁm

HELHEBEREED :Ji$'§l

REFH BRI RKI2E A ANE

EZEER - AN - ZFEF=-£

BRI EAEARBAEGE I

BEEELDE -

i\‘*? & )ﬂﬂﬁ}

M BEREMNBRABIBENMNZIZBEK
ME —FIiRF BA425EB &R
B RE_FRFEATISEFE
%IJ,% MRE=ZFRERZEZX
ERITABR AT BREERME
%wm¢505@§+:§:ﬂ%oa
BB ERUNELEERB 2EEES
221,850,000,%7_52$%&>§
M E LR IBIEET -

(® ARARETEEBRABZMEE
B 75

N
PORAH5 R B FE8(a) K BB -

F@EOBEZBEBEALR SN
R ET R BB 14AE AT E 2 A&
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31 March 2009
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

NR.REHNE s 2EFMT A
NEERSESHIT A EEAEAN

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are T~
as follows:
2009 Group
—BENE FEE
Financial assets
EREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for  Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
NFEEIE
ZERMEE EXk AHEE
-RKEEE BUERY SREE wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET THERT THER
Available-for-sale investments AtEE R E - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) W E SBEZ (Kizx18) - 46,979 - 46,979
Deposits and other receivables BE REAMEKERR
(note 18) (FizE18) - 2,960 - 2,960
Equity investments at fair value FERBEREATEE
through profit or loss PR R HE I & 207,395 - - 207,395
Pledged time deposit BEHEMESRER - 17,550 - 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents BehBE2EEY - 276,039 - 276,039
207,395 343,528 780 551,703
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

32. RERE sz I A (&)

REBEHZZBRERMITAZKREE

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are wmr (&)
as follows: (continued)
2009 Group
—BENEF rEE
Financial liabilities
sREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LU SRR A Gt &
Z2eMmBe®&
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables (note 23) ENE ZERR (MF5E23) 13,523
Other payables and deposits received EMEERR R E WizS
(note 23) (FF7E23) 26,387
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 97,121
Mortgage loan advanced from RRME A RN
a fellow subsidiary HIBER 55,915
Loans advanced from minority shareholders rEEWBEARZ
of the Group's subsidiaries VERRRBN 2 ER 222,727
Due to a related company FETRAE A FIRIE 1,004
416,677
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 3R R MIGE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

2. RERIE s 2B T A (&)

REBEHZZBReM T AZKREE

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are mT (&)
as follows: (continued)
2008 Group
—ZTN\F A&EHE
Financial assets
SREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for  Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total
FERBERR
N EEDR
JEREE Rk AHEE
-REEE RBREF SREE FE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FTET TET
Available-for-sale investments AHEE 2 IRE - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) EUE SR (HizE18) - 60,958 - 60,958
Deposits and other receivables B KHE AR R
(note 18) (KFzE18) - 32,136 - 32,136
Equity investments at fair value BRBERRATEE
through profit or loss B8R 7 I IEIR B 31,571 - - 31,571
Pledged time deposit BHEREHRER - 17,550 - 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEFEY - 364,920 - 364,920
Due from a related company & W B3 A R KT8 - 345 - 345
31,571 475,909 780 508,260
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE
31 March 2009
—ETNEFE=RA=+—H
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32, R¥RIZI9o>4m T A (&)
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REERzZEEeR T AZREE
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are o (4E)

as follows: (continued)

2008 Group
—ETNE AEHE
Financial liabilities
=
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
VABESH R AN ET 2
ZemBafE
HK$'000
FAT
Trade payables (note 23) ENE ZERR (MF5E23) 20,752
Other payables and deposits received HEMEMNERRE RiZ®
(note 23) (FF7E23) 58,430
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 128,992
Mortgage loan advanced from ARWEBATENZ
a fellow subsidiary ZBER 66,046
Loans advanced from minority shareholders AEEWBERAZ
of the Group's subsidiaries LY RERAN ZERK 233,421
507,641
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31 March 2009
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32,

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are

as follows: (continued)

rERNE s 2E®M T A (&)

REERAESBSM T AZERE
wmr (&)

Financial assets Company
SREE RRH
2009 2008
b3 K3 —ZTNE
Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loansand financial
receivables assets Total receivables assets Total
ERRk AHHE ERR  AHEE
EREN <SREE #BE RUWEY SREE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TER TER TET TET
Available-for-sale investments [ IHE 2 £ E - 780 780 - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries RN B AR A 519,198 - 519,198 410,138 - 410,138
Deposits and other receivables 1% I H it JEURER
(note 18) (Hzx18) 112 - 112 86 - 86
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS ED 197,244 - 197244 277,052 - 277052
716,554 780 717334 687276 780 688,056
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PSR R RE
31 March 2009
—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 iz¥ERIZlo €/ T A (8)
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REERZEEeR T AZEREE
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are R (4E)

as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities Company
EWeE /N
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENEF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
LU 88 B 24 VABE S5 A AR
TRz FrEZ
ca= =N TRBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Due to subsidiaries JEAST B BB R R kIR 112,587 70,592
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 33,

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans, a mortgage loan advanced
from a fellow subsidiary and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and

trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of

these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long term

debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits (through the

impact on floating rate borrowings).

2009 —EEAF
Hong Kong dollar ABTT

Hong Kong dollar BT
Singapore dollar AN T
Singapore dollar N3 T
United States dollar ETT
United States dollar E7T

2008 —FEN\F
Hong Kong dollar BT

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar ETT
United States dollar ETT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

3. W KEREEBERBE (&)

F & B ()
TERTALHEARMEBRET
T FIE AR R A BOR D 2 8
R - AN o B B B B (B 18)
RAREEF (FIBFE SRR
B) YR B O BB o

Group
AEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) in profit/(loss) after tax

basis points  and retained profits

BRBLEER

HEE (E518) RR BB @ Fl
EH (TR #in, CGE2)
HK$'000

F#ET

15 (100)
(15) 100
15 (69)
(15) 69
15 (26)
(15) 26
15 (109)
(15) 109
15 (61)
(15) 61
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2009

—EEANF=-A=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs
are denominated in Singapore dollars, Indonesia
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change
in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss)
after tax and retained profits (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

.M BEREEBERBEK (&)

SMNEE R B
AEERHRRZFEBRR - % FRE
RIORASREEMAENINEE
NN ERETEEMESL - A%
Bz K& 2 Y A K B 7R TG LA # ol
¥ HEB BIRELTREE
Bz - AN E B FI LI E E R K
ReoAT BEESEZNERINE
Bk THREBTEHEZEHTE
RSN [ B3R o

TRERRAREEHHEMEEERFT DT
8 T ORT AN 3R ST RE K AT B H IR A IE
BB Z BT - A5 BB AR i A
S (BE) RRBEN (REBEER
BEAFEELREH) SN

2009

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the Singapore dollar

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against

the Singapore dollar

Group
TEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) profit/(loss)
in foreign after tax and
currency rate  retained profits
BB & EF,
(BHE) &
hitEBE = REEF
FE (B2E) i, O 2)
% HK$'000
THET
—EEhF
fisi 78 T K,
otz (E 10 187
T B TTH,
s T A (10) (187)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2008

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the Singapore dollar

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against
the Singapore dollar

Credit risk

The Group provided services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is
the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are

monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

.U BEAREEEEREE (&)

ShEE = B (4)
Group
NEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) profit/(loss)
in foreign after tax and

currency rate

HNES FE SR
F1E, (B21E)
%
—ETNF
A TTH
N TRz E 10
AT H
¥ T HAE (10)
FERK

BEFPHEAE#ETT]

retained profits
BB s,
(B8 &
REH M
i, O )
HK$'000
TA&TT

3,923

(3,923)

AREBRARBAMEEASEZE =
TRBEENTRERHERSE AEEZ
BRAEFBEREFEERLETES ZMH
EEZERRF Ut
Oh BRUWPR SR IR E A EE
B MAKEZRERRARIENEKX -
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31 March 2009

—EEANF=-A=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets,
an amount due from a related company and other
receivables, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and
by industry sector. There is no significant credit risk as
the tenants have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the lease of cruise ships and investment

properties.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans. The Group's policy is that not
more than 50% of the borrowings should mature
in any 12-month period. 20% of the Group's debts
would mature in less than one year at 31 March
2009 (2008: 18%) based on the carrying value of

borrowings reflected in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5ER R EE

31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33 B EMETEBEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRS (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities BIEETHRIFIER AT HE 5
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual AEBRGEEB 2B ERIHH -

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group 2009
e ZEBNE
3to
Less than  less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=f@A
PR EIR
ERREE =R +-@BRA -£IiFf EBIF BE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET THT TR TR

Interest-bearing bank loans ARRITER 17,729 2,760 8564 51,918 25521 106,492
Mortgage loan advanced from  RZKBAF]
a fellow subsidiary PR ZIRIBER - 1,548 4,639 24,641 45,633 76,461

Loans advanced from minority AEEHBEAFZ
shareholders of the Group's D ERER

subsidiaries ZEH - - - 222727 - 222,721
Trade payables ERE SRR 11,254 2,269 - - - 13,523
Other payables and deposits ~ EHIE(TERF K

received Bz 10,710 4,308 2,305 9,064 - 26,387
Due to a related company [EMEEE N RIFUE 1,004 - - - - 1,004

40,697 10,885 15,508 308,350 71,154 446,594
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—ZETNEFE=RA=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 33,

AND POLICIES (continued)

HHBEREEBEREE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REES RS (&)
Group 2008
AEE —ZENF
3to
Less than  less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=R
JEEREE =EA +ZAA —ZLF BBRILF ok
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TEX TER TER TEX TET
Interest-bearing bank loans FRBTER - 9,035 26718 72,285 32,749 140,787
Mortgage loan advanced from  EZMB 2 H]
a fellow subsidiary BN RIBER - 1,659 5027 26941 57238 90,865
Loans advanced from minority  AEEHEARZ
shareholders of the Group's D ERR B
subsidiaries ZER - - - 233421 - 233421
Trade payables ERESHER 19,203 1,549 - - - 20752
Other payables and deposits ~ E i EREEF K
received ElizE 49,910 100 858 7,562 - 58430
69,113 12,343 32,603 340209 89,987 544,255

At the balance sheet date, the Company’s amounts
due to subsidiaries of HK$112,587,000 (2008:
HK$70,592,000) are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 33,

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 19) as at 31 March 2009. The Group's listed
investments are listed on the stock exchange of Hong
Kong and are valued at quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date.

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the balance sheet date, and
its respective highest and lowest points during the year

were as follows:

31 March
2009
“EBNE
ZR=t+-H

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BB - BEEH 13,576

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

MHBEREEBEREE (&)

J% A (B 4% = B

[i% 7 (B 18 B B2 = 75 IR #E 48 BUK T &
BrEFEBEEESMERNELRE
FRATFETHKORR R_ZZN
F=Z=A=+—HB XEEFMAEYHH
fREEEERIRE D EABERER
BAFEEY R RERSESE?
ETRRERE (ME19) - AEE/
TR EREREBZISGRM M-
REEBIRMMTEE -

REEABNKRERSHEERH
HRE - TIFHFR ST RER
%z»x&ﬁéiﬁqﬁ%éﬂ’aai%&m
KRE®QT :

High/low 31 March High/low
2009 2008 2008
“EBNE “EENE ZEN\F
&/ =-A=-t-8 =/
26,387/ 22,849 31,958/
10,676 19,387
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B 53R R 5

31 March 2009

—ZEERF=A=1+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 10% change in the fair value of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant,

based on their carrying amounts at the balance sheet

33. M REMEE B R RBEK (&)

B A LR ()
TRETERSSBREFET

RIBERERER

HMERZEREE -

I AEIR E 2 2 T EE S IR 10%
B HE -

date.
Carrying
amount
of equity
investment
RERE
W R E
HK$'000
FTHET
2009 —EENF
Investments listed in: EELEHIRE -
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading HIEEE 207,395
2008 ZETNE
Investments listed in: EELEHIRE -
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading HIEEE 31,571
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A4%8

Increase/
(decrease)

in fair value

AV
i,/
(R 4)

%

10
(10)

Increase/

(decrease) in
profit/(loss) after tax
and retained profits
BH (F8)
RRE A

#in,/ (B)
HK$'000

TER

17,317
(17,317)

2,605
(2,605)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2009 and 31
March 2008.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R R MIE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=Z/A=+—H

.M BEAREERFEREE (&)

BEXER
AEEBEAERZTEZABRAER
AREBEENRFBELEXRHZR
B RERIBREE AN RAHE
HEFLIREBWEREME -

REERBEEMGMEZZLLER
BEABBEIL AT E - &M
BEABE ASEATHABYHKRER
KB - RRREDEAKNFKET
TR o AN 5= [E 1 52 51 BF AT 0] b A0 B9
BERERAR - RBEE_ZTZTNF
=A=+t—BRZ-ZEZENF=HAH
=t HALEFEAR BHEERERN
WER BEMRELELREH -
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31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 33,

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which

is total indebtedness divided by the equity attributable

to equity holders of the Company. The Group’s policy

is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and

50%. Total indebtedness includes interest-bearing bank

loans and a loan from a fellow subsidiary. The gearing

ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

HBEREEBEREE (&)

EXREE (&)

AREENBEBEL RREZEEAN
BELL RS BERIR AN R A RE
BEARBLES AKEZHRRB
B & L XM 10%E50% © 42
BEFERTRBRITERLE RN B
REABNZER - REERAZARE
T

Group
AEE
2009 2008
—2EAE —TI)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Interest-bearing bank loans sFEIRTTER 97,121 128,992
Mortgage loan advanced from EESPNGIEES]

a fellow subsidiary 2B ER 55,915 66,046
Total indebtedness 4B IETF 153,036 195,038
Equity attributable to equity holders RARIRERFE A

of the Company (L e 2 982,619 1,072,780
Gearing ratio BEE 16% 18%
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34.

35.

36.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥ttt &2 SEEEBER QA

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the Group’s post balance sheet events
are included in notes 21 and 26 to the financial

statements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The Group had the following material reclassification

during the year:

(a) Since October 2008, the directors considered
securities trading as one of the Group’s principal
activities. Accordingly, the other income of
HK$7,278,000 and administrative expenses of
HK$878,000 which represented gain on trading of
securities and dividend income and fair value loss
on securities, respectively, for the year ended 31

March 2008 were reclassified as revenue;

(b) The cost of services provided and selling
and distribution costs for the year ended 31
March 2008 amounting to HK$2,860,000 and
HK$4,561,000, respectively were reclassified from

administrative expenses; and

(c) Foreign exchange differences for the year ended
31 March 2008 amounting to HK$10,293,000

was reclassified from other income and gains.

In the opinion of the directors, these reclassifications
produce a more appropriate presentation of the

Group's operating results.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 22 July 2009.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34,

35.

36.

B F5 3R R EE
31 March 2009
—ZEENFE=ZA=+—H
“ER®BEE
AEBHEEHBESEFBHNY
R MIFE21 X226 °

b & & 58
R AEEEATEREHN SR -

(@) BAZTETENF+ AR EFH
BFHEBERANEBHEFS -1
FEEK -Hit REBZ_ZZ
NF=ZA=+—BLEFEZH
fth Uz A7,278,000% JT K 17 B F9
¥878,0008 T (DRI REEF
HEzREEREBARFSZ
ANFBEEB)ELETNSER
WA s

BE_ZZTN\F=A=+—H
1E 5 E 8 FT5R AR 75 BK AN LA
K E kD #EKAKD R B
2,860,0007% 7T }2.4,561,000/ T -
EHITHAXERE &

(®)

o BEZE-_ZZENF=ZA=+—
BIEFEMNELZREARH
10,293,000/ 7T © B B H fth I8
ARKZEF DL -

EERR EFoBRELRAEEKR
XHEMINREREE -

B ¥Rk 2
MEBREER_TTAEFLA
ST REREESIE R -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFHBGHME

The following table summarises the published consolidated

results and the consolidated assets, liabilities and minority

TERBBFEAKFEEZENELEEZES
sk - MO A KB R A T E MR F

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as EE AW IGEAXERGEAEE  BE
extracted from the published audited consolidated financial KA # I EER - W RILABEHOE -
statements of the Group and reclassified as appropriate.
RESULTS E ¥
Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—-HLFE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EBEANE —FETN\F ZZTLF ZTERF ZTTHF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT FA&T FHT FHET FAT
REVENUE A 219,148 303,482 247329 252,490 264,343
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FNUNST) T
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE BEA
TO EQUITY HOLDERS B EE
OF THE COMPANY wmH (B8) (69,704) 176,198 124,773 202,338 132,623
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EE -BERILYBEERS
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EThE —TTN\F ZTTLF ZTETRF ZTThF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'O HK$'000
TET FET FET THET FET
TOTAL ASSETS EEHH 1,443,078 1,643,426 1,332,174 1,042,729 700,157
TOTAL LIABILITIES =Rt L0 (458,287) (548,483) (591,727) (425,598) (384,558)
MINORITY INTERESTS LEBRRER (2,172)  (22,163) 771 (7,478) 26,706
982,619 1,072,780 741,218 609,653 342,305
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Investment properties

Description

L

3rd and 4th Floors,
Nan Fung Industrial Building,
15-17 Chong Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEEIEAIEMH15-1798
e T RANE3E R4E

7th Floor,

Nan Fung Industrial Building,
15-17 Chong Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BRNEBEAIZE5-175%
R TERNETR

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),

Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BERHAZBEERT- 115

EORESM T (B =) 23A5R

Shop No. 1, Ground Floor,
Pao Woo Mansion,

177-179 Wanchai Road and
51 Cross Lane, Wan Chai,

Hong Kong
BEEBFEFE177-179% K&
ZHNES515%
RFNKE Ho T 155 5

Use

A

Industrial

T

Industrial

S

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YIZEFTE
31 March 2009

—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

REWE

Nature

EX

Medium term leasehold

FHIEE

Medium term leasehold
FRHIME

Medium term leasehold

REIEE

Medium term leasehold
FRHIE

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #

Percentage
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EmET
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100

P165



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ¥t &2 SR EH B EHR A T

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YIZEFTE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

Investment properties (continued)

Description

B

Unit Nos. 3810 and 3811

38th Floor, West Tower,

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

BEAEPIR T ET168-2005%
FEd 0 HHEI8E
3810%38115% &L

Shop Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1F, 1G
and TH of Retail Portions,

G/F., Commercial Podium,
New Mandarin Plaza,

No. 14, Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BEBNERDPERE

MIEBEEB14RH XER OB ST

TERIAIB-1C- 1F: 1GK
THER 48

Ground Floor including its cockloft,
Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEE AR E3015%
EEEM T (BEAEREZ)

Ground Floor and Mezzanine Floor,
Kam Sha Mansion,

No. 212 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Shamshuipo, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BB NBRAKY R EIE2125
BT KR8

Use

R

Commercial

[BES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

REWE ()

Nature

B

Medium term leasehold

FHEE

Medium term leasehold

FHIEE

Medium term leasehold

FHIEE

Medium term leasehold

FHIEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 #
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Investment properties (continued)

Description

¥R

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEBNET AETIT T EH43HR
BT L E S M T 55% 58

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEBNET AT TE43H%R
BT T ESH T390

AIG Building,
22 Martin Road,
Singapore 239058

#rhn

Martin Road 225%
AIG Building
239058

Use

2B

Commercial

[BES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
L E =

31 March 2009

—ETNEFE=RA=+—H

BEWE (&)
Percentage
Nature of interest
K =Bt
Medium term leasehold 100
FHEAFE &
Medium term leasehold 100
RHIHE
Freehold 60
KA SETE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YIZEFTE
31 March 2009
—ZEZAF=ZA=+—H

Property under development BEBPYE

Percentage of Gross floor/  Percentage
Description Use completion Nature site area of interest
R A% THEDE X BE/HEEE RZEIH
"Plaza Damas” Commercial N/A Medium 97,456 sq. ft. 100
Tower 3A of Crescent Square, [E S @ term FAR
Sri Hartarnas, Kuala Lumpur, leasehold
Malaysia HERE
ol i
HER

Sri Hartarnas
Crescent Square 3A[E

[Plaza Damas ]

In prior years, the Group made a claim against the RBEETFE AEBDMZWHFE 2
developer of this property for the refund of the /& 7 # 220,000,0005 # (XS R
deposit of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 42,560,000/ 0) Z L &R - RARE
HK$42,560,000). The case is still in progress on the date ~ B H - BEASFAMEEITH ©

of this report.
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